BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
April 1, 2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall
CONVENE: 6:00 p.m.
PRESENT:

VOTING MEMBERS:
Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Michelle Anderson
Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo
Councilmember Bill Kauakea Medeiros
Councilmember Michael J. Molina
Councilmember Michael P. Victorino

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson

STAFF:

David Raatz, Legislative Attorney
Lance Taguchi, Legislative Analyst
Clarita Balala, Substitute Committee Secretary
Michele Yoshimura, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla

ADMIN.:

Mary Kielty, South District Supervisor, Department of Parks and Recreation

OTHERS:

Andrew Beerer
Jesse Rios, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. YouthBank
Regiemar Cadang, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Y outhBank
Adele Rugg, President, Maui Choral Arts Association
Dana Smith, Community Work Day Program
AIda St. James, Executive Director, Keiki Kokua
Jeff St. James, Keiki Kokua
Abby Wong, Keiki Kokua
Jack Eades, Keiki Kokua
Erlinda Eades, Keiki Kokua
Jim St. James, Keiki Kokua
Kalani Kapahulehua, Kihei Youth Center
Piilani Goods, Kihei Youth Center

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Aprill,2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall

Fiemea Hafoka, Kihei Youth Center
Hanalei Alapai, Kihei Youth Center
Bill Baldwin, Kihei Youth Center
Lehuanani Huddleston-Hafoka, Executive Director, Kihei Youth Center
Jon Miller, President, Kihei Community Association
Sonia King, Library Director, Hawaii Business Research Library
Kimokeo Kapahulehua
Kalei Aiwohi, Kihei Youth Center
Stephen Pawlak, Maui Family YMCA
Annie Gomes, Maui Family YMCA
Rob Madow, Maui Family YMCA
Coralie Willett, Maui Humane Society
Jeny Bissell, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Enlace Hispano
Viviana Hahn, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Enlace Hispano (Spanish
interpreter)
Jesus Baltazar, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Enlace Hispano
Amanda Perez-Martinez, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Enlace Hispano
Ray and Cindy Valois, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Business Development
Corporation
Debra Ray, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Business Development Corporation
Chris Valdez, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. BEST Program
Tony Fisher, Committee for More Equitable Taxation, Maui Economic
Opportunity, Inc., and Kaunoa Senior Services
Sylvia Reilly, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Head Start Program
Angela Varano, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Head Start Program
Janice Young, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Head Start Program
Laurence Christopher
Mark Simon, Maui Visitors Bureau
Shawna Fischer
John Davis
Patricia Rouse, Maui Long Term Care Partnership
Allan Raikes, Maui Visitors Bureau
Gary Elster
George Rixey
Patricia Duckworth, Maui Long Term Care Partnership/Aging with Aloha
Teya Penniman, Maui Invasive Species Committee
Thomas Croly
Bud Pikrone, Commissioner, Fire and Public Safety Commission
Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez, President, Na Hale 0 Maui
Mike Moran
Sheilah Jorgenson, Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance and Project EAST
Caitlin Mauck, Project EAST

-2-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Aprill,2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall

Liz Zarro, Project EAST
Travis Roberts, Project EAST
Jennifer Rappenecker, Maui Human Society
Peter Lago
Bob Richardson, Kihei Community Association
Perna Gilman, Women Helping Women
Lynne Gilroy, Maui Arts and Cultural Center
Gene Zarro, Kihei Charter School
Rosemary Robbins, Maui Long Term Care Partnership
Alex Guerrero, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. YouthBank
Chris Bakeman, Keiki Kokua
Maile M. Yepis, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. Head Start Program
Jennifer Kotter
Ann Nowicki, Kihei Youth Center
Benjamin Johnson
Larry Crilley, Department of Fire and Public Safety
(35) additional attendees

ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2009 FOR
THE COUNTY OF MAUl (C.C. No. 08-55)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in
session. Good evening, people of South Maui. My name is Joe
Pontanilla. I am the Budget Chairman and I'd like to introduce the
Members that are here this evening. I'm going to have Michelle
Anderson, your Council Member, introduce the Members that are here this
evemng.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, everybody. Thanks for coming out. We
appreciate you all showing up. I'm going to start at the very end and
introduce your Council representative from the Wailuku residency area,
Mike Victorino; and your Council representative Bill Medeiros from the
Hana region; your Councilmember Gladys Baisa from the Up country
region; your Councilmember Chair Riki Hokama from the Lanai region;
your Councilmember Joe Pontanilla, our Budget Chair, from Kahului;
your Councilmember Mike Molina from PaialHaiku; and your
Councilmember Danny Mateo from Molokai. Thank you all for coming
out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Johnson is excused from tonight's
testimony ... public hearing. At this time, your Chair would like to
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recognize the staff that are supporting the Committee tonight. We do have
Mr. David Raatz. He is the Legal Analyst, as well as Clarita Balala.
People from the South Maui region, tonight is your opportunity to provide
public testimony to the Fiscal Year 2009 Budget as proposed by the
Mayor of this County, Mayor Charmaine Tavares. So we're here to hear
your testimony and when we complete our rounds of public testimony,
we're going to be deliberating the Budget for the Fiscal Year 2009 for the
County ofMaui.
Just a few ground rules. If you could turn off your cell phones to
the ... turn it off or put it on the silent mode so as not to interfere with the
people that are testifying tonight. In the rear to my left is the
bathrooms ... the public bathrooms. And if you haven't signed up to
provide public testimony, you could do so at this time to my far left where
the people are standing signing up for public testimony. People that are
testifying you have three minutes to testify, one minute to conclude. After
the first three minutes you will be notified that the first three minutes has
gone by, and if you can conclude your testimony in one minute, we would
appreciate that. And before you leave the microphone that's set up over
here in the middle of the center, please stay a while because the Members
may have questions for you that they want to ask if they have any
questions that need to be asked. So if you could, stay for a few seconds
and if there's no questions, then you know, you can go back and take your
seat.
The first person to testify is Andrew Beerer, followed by Jesse Rios .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. BEERER: Hello. Aloha and welcome, Council. Thank you for coming out
tonight.
My name is Andrew Beerer.
I'm a Kihei Community
Association Board Member and a member ofKP AT. I would like to thank
the Council for recognizing and funding the needs of South Maui and we
would like to thank you again for being here. In general, we support the
Park Ranger program. I'm going to be talking a lot about parks. It's kind
of my passion and interest within our community and also providing
recreational activities for the youth and we really want to say thanks to
people like Kimokeo, Alika, Mike Morris, who's wonderful programs give
so much opportunity to the youth, and so we really appreciate your
support for them. In general, I wanted to touch on the Park Ranger
program which is being funded by the Parks Department. That is
something we do support. We also would like to push for more bike
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paths, sidewalks, and the North-South Collector Road.
routes to school and pedestrian friendly roadways.

We need safer

My favorite topic to address at this hearing is the CIP funding for Parks
projects and I'd like to give a quick report on how we're doing every year.
For the past couple of years we were tracking three major projects at
Kalama Park. These projects were the Kalama pedestrian path or the
Whale Trail, the new playground to replace the old one, and the youth
favorite, a new and improved skate park. Thanks to the good efforts of
our volunteers, Bob and Lis Richardson, and the . . . {inaudible}. . .
et cetera, working alongside the Parks Department, they were able to put
out bids for the Kalama Playground and the pedestrian trail. And we are
also seeing the completion of a new bathroom in Kam III. Unfortunately,
unfortunately the skate park money has lapsed but at least we got it
through the design phase so that's great. Since the money for construction
has lapsed we're holding out hope that we can secure the construction
money in a future budget.
We want to thank the Council for funding these projects. Your support
helped make these projects a reality. In fact, it was your support that put
the money in the budget that made these projects happen. As we move
forward we see only one Park CIP project listed on the six-year plan for
South Maui - the South Maui Community Park. There's roughly 7.7
million in the new budget for construction of Phase 1A and that's the
second page I gave you here on the handout. However, five million is the
developer's condition based on the approval of the Honuaula
Development. This is where it gets tricky. We don't know what that
condition is. Is it Phase 1 approval, final approval, et cetera? According
to our meeting with Pat Matsui and Director Horcajo yesterday, they will
need the full 7.7 million to begin Phase IA. So Council Members, this is
what's really amazing about this meeting. This is where we rely on you to
use your best judgment as to if that money is going to be available or not.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. BEERER: We have to rely on your better judgment to determine what the
condition of the $5 million is. You know better than any of us. If you feel
the conditions will be met, then we should keep the budget as is, and
hopefully, we can break ground on the community park. If you feel the
conditions won't be met, might go to litigation, et cetera, then we should
look at reappropriating the balance of 2.7 million so that it won't sit idle.
Real projects in adding less than $300,000 that could finish three very
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important projects that were not completed or allowed to lapse and those
projects are below. It's a shade for the new Kalama Playground, less than
100,000; shade for the Kihei Aquatic Center that lapsed, less than
100,000; and construction money for the Kalama Skate Park, less than
100,000. So really it's up to you to determine is that money going to be
available -MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MR. BEERER: --for the community park and can we go forward or should we
reappropriate the other 2.7 million coming from park assessments. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this evening? Seeing none ... oh, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that really well thought out
testimony, Andrew. Could you leave that copy with us?
MR. BEERER: Yes. I gave a copy to all of you. But my testimony is in the very
back page. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I'm sorry. I didn't get to the back page.
I was busy listening. Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. BEERER: Yes. There's a copy. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, anymore questions? Seeing none. Thank
you very much. Jesse Rios, followed by Regiemar Cadang.
MR. RIOS: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and the Budget Committee. Hello,
my name is Jerry Rios ... Jesse Rios. Thank you for supporting the MEO
Y outhBank Program. I would also like to thank you for funding this
program in the past. I'm a student at Maui Waena Intermediate School
and in the eighth grade. I live at Kahului. The Y outhBank has helped me
by teaching me things I didn't know like how to put ... how to plant taro,
pull fireweed at the Windmills, plant native plants at Polipoli. I enjoy
MEO staff and learn a lot from them. This past year I went to Kumu [sic]
Gardens, the Windmills, and made the community nicer. And I believe
that being enrolled in this program has helped me being a better person
and kept me busy doing good things and learning instead of getting into
trouble. My parents are very pleased that I am studying harder and
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learning new things to help me in my future. 1 have learned a lot of life
skills, too. Please support the funding for the MEO YouthBank and
Transportation. Thank you for the opportunity to testify and for all that
you do for the people ofMaui County.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at
this time? Seeing none. Thank you very much for being here. Regiemar
Cadang, followed by Adele Rugg.
MR. CADANG: Good evening ... good evening, Chairman Pontanilla and the
Members of the Budget Committee. Hello, my name is Regiemar Cadang.
I'm here to ask for your continuous support of MEO YouthBank Program.
1 would also like to thank you for funding this program in the past, and
hopefully, the future. 1 am 13 years old and a student at Maui Waena in
the eighth grade and 1 live in Kahului. I've been in MEO for about a year
now. The Y outhBank has helped me with, with life skills like CPR and
first aid. 1 enjoy the MEO staff, learn a lot from them. This past year 1
went to Hana. 1 did community work and culture experience. Also, 1
went up to Polipoli forest to plant native trees and remove burnt trees after
that gigantic fire. 1 believe that being enrolled in this program had helped
me to, to learn about tobacco and how much toxic chemicals there is in it.
Also, culture experience in how to make lau lau. This kept me busy doing
things and learn interest ... instead of getting into trouble. My, my parents
are pleased that I'm getting ... I'm getting study ... I'm studying harder and
learning new things. 1 had ... 1 learned about pono, too. Please support the
funding of the MEO YouthBank and MEO Transportation. 1 will ... 1 will
help ... it will help me and my friends to be better citizens. Thank
you ... thank you for the opportunity to testify and all you do for the people
ofMaui County.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Good job! Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you again. Adele Rugg, followed by Dana
Smith.
MS. RUGG: Good evening and aloha, Council Members, and welcome to Kihei,
the sunny part of the island. My name is Adele Rugg, President of the
Board of Directors of the Maui Choral Arts Association. First, let me
thank you all again for an incredible and thankless job you do for us.
Again, in the Mayor's Budget in the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns on Page 10-24, the Maui Choral Arts Association has received
our first ever line item of $25,000. We are so very grateful to be included
in the Mayor's Budget and I'm here again this evening to ask you to keep
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this line item in the budget. I've had the pleasure of speaking to all of you
at the Budget meetings in both Lahaina and Central Maui. I promise no
more pens and no more flyers.
But I'm here this evening to let you know again that we are humbly asking
you to keep this $25,000 line item in the budget. And I wanted to remind
you all about our concert on Sunday, April 6 at 2:00 p.m. at the Maui Arts
and Cultural Center. Again, I would like to invite each of you, your staff,
and the guests in the audience to attend this concert. It will be absolutely
outstanding. Our concert will include 30 members of the Honolulu
Symphony and our 50-member Maui Concert Chorus along with two
world renowned soloists, one a soprano and one a baritone. And in fact,
our choristers are practicing as we speak. Last year we had over 600
attendees at our Spring Concert. Our chorus has been practicing for many
months to put this show together for the community. It is truly a labor of
love for all of our volunteer choristers. With an additional $25,000 we
will be able to bring more wonderful music to our community and to the
youth in our schools. Thank you in advance for your kokua to the Maui
Choral Arts Association. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Adele. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you again for being here.
MS. RUGG: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Dana Smith, followed by AIda St. James.
MS. SMITH: Good evening, I'm Dana Smith. For almost two years I have been
an employee of Community Work Day. My title is Program Support and I
serve the program as office manager and administrative assistant. A
typical day at Community Work Day begins with phone calls from the
public with a wide ... with a wide range of requests - anywhere from an
invitation for Jan Dapitan, our Executive Director, to meet with a potential
project partner to solve a challenging issue for a community elder who
wants help in moving a refrigerator out for recycling. The community
brings recyclables such as paint, tires, batteries, e-cycling equipment, and
sometimes products the landfill won't take, but because we don't want the
public to dump it along the roadside, we take the items for either reuse or
proper disposal.
Our allocation for Operations and Highway Beautification from Maui
County provides the base of funding needed to keep going. Community
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Work Day Program is about empowering people to give back, to be
responsible, and to engage in the action that contributes to a cleaner and
healthier place to live. Thank you for your help in the past and I ask that
the County ofMaui and Community Work Day continue partnership in the
years ahead in order to keep Maui beautiful. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Dana. Members, any questions for the
testifier this evening? Seeing none. Thank you very much. AIda St.
James ... Members, the next seven testifiers are from the same
organization, Keiki Kokua, and I'd like to call each of them up - AIda St.
James, Jeff St. James, Abby Wong, Erlinda Eades, Jack Eades, Jim St.
James.
MS. ST. JAMES: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for coming out
again tonight. Keiki Kokua is asking for $35,000 as a line item in the
Mayor's Budget. We do hope that you realize the need for our programs.
This evening I want to tell you briefly about my foster care and adoption
experience. This is to illustrate the need for Keiki Kokua programs. In
1991, we were living on Molokai and we became foster parents. When
our children, Jeff and Joe, came to us, they were from Maui. So not only
did they have to change foster families, but also schools, friends, and all
familiar surroundings. When DHS arranged the adoptions, the boys had
visited us on Molokai several times. But when the final placement was
made and they would permanently remain on Molokai with us, it was truly
scary and it could not have come at a worst time. This was the exact time
that my husband, Jim, had to go to the mainland to help our adopted
daughter who didn't want to come to Hawaii when we did. So here I was
alone on Molokai with two boys to entertain who were on break for the
entire summer vacation. Although we had two or three visits back and
forth before their placement ... before their permanent placement, we were
still very much strangers to each other. I don't know who was more
petrified, they or I. All of us were stressed by the experience and it would
have been so much easier if we had had a phone number to call and
someone to talk to to get us through this very awkward and difficult time.
This evening I want to introduce you ... to you one of my favorite people.
This is Jeff, younger of. .. younger son of our two adopted sons. Jeff was
in foster care for four years before my husband and I adopted him at age
8Yz. Immediately it was clear to us that he needed occupational therapy
since he couldn't get a towel to stay on the towel rack, he didn't know
how to use a knife and fork, and he couldn't even open a tube of
toothpaste by himself. He tended to fly into a rage over almost anything.
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Jim and I had to figure out what to do all by ourselves. Again, we
certainly could have used Keiki Kokua services back then to help us
through. Lucky for us though, we didn't give up on Jeff. He is here
tonight to tell you a little bit about himself.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you very much.
MS. ST. JAMES: Thank you.
MR. JEFF ST. JAMES: Good evening, Council Members. Like my mom said,
Joe and I were adopted in 1993 on Molokai, but before that we had several
foster homes about four years on Maui. We were taken away from our
birth parents because of neglect. We were living homeless on the beach
and our birth parents refused to accept child welfare services. So they
took the four youngest kids away. Joe and I were the only ones that would
be together. Our older brothers taught us how to lie and steal for money
and food. That was a very hard habit to break. In elementary school I was
in special ed. I was teased and harassed by a lot of classmates. I was a
participant in Special Olympics in Maui. I went to North Carolina for the
World Games in 1998. Special Olympics has helped me build a lot of
self-esteem. When I got older, I participated as a volunteer with my
parents. We also did community clean-up as a family altogether. I moved
back to Maui when I was in high school with my family. I went to Job
Corps after that studying culinary arts. Once graduated I worked at
several places, including Krispy Kreme and Cold Stone Creamery. Right
now I work at Taco Bell as a Shift Manager.
When I was a kid I'd been a camper at Camp Imua. Even though I needed
occupational therapy for several years while I was growing up, I'm
perfectly okay now. I do tae kwon do. I'm a brown stripe and I play the
piano fluently, hopefully. In 2007, I became a volunteer counselor and I
help the kids like I was helped. When I can, I volunteer for Keiki Kokua
events or anything else necessary. I like to help the kids so they don't feel
ashamed, guilty, or angry about being in foster care. I think that they
think that they are all alone, but they are not. When they see kids like
them, they feel relieved and make friends immediately. I'm here to ask
you to please help support Keiki Kokua. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at
this time? Thank you very much for testifying.
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MS. WONG: Good evening, Council Members. I ask that you please support
Keiki Kokua. I have two adopted children. My oldest daughter was one
when we had adopted her. She had rage issues that needed to be dealt
with differently than basic psychology. Actually, basic psychology was
actually the opposite of what she needed. We didn't ... we did not know
where to turn for help. Our home was chaotic and it was breaking up our
family. Thanks to the Kokua Line they were able to help us and actually
refer us to one of their board members who is a therapist trained in the
current psychology of trauma experienced by young children. Keiki
Kokua helps families of adoptive and foster children like no one else on
the island. They are very knowledgeable and know where to help you to
turn if they don't have the answers. Our family is where we are today
because of Keiki Kokua and we ask that you please support them.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you again for testifying.
MR. EADES: Good evening, Council Members, Budget Committee.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: If you can, address the mic closer.
MR. EADES: Okay. How's that?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
MR. EADES: Okay. Good evening, Council Members. We are Jack and Linda
Eades. We've been foster parents for about 18 years, both on Oahu and on
Maui. Over those 18 years we've had our ups and downs and there have
been many, many times when there was nobody else to turn to. We're out
there floundering around - situation could be anything. About three years
ago on Maui we were approached by Child Welfare Services to take legal
guardianship over two ... over three young men. We did. Two of 'em
were not so great. One hung on until his 18th birthday. But we had
nowhere to turn. Then we found out about Keiki Kokua and we think
Keiki Kokua is something that really needs to be around for a long, long
time. It needs to be able to grow, expand, and provide their services. One
of the biggest things that ... biggest motivators with Keiki Kokua has been
two years running now. They've been instrumental in getting a kids'
Christmas party - keiki Christmas party. There's a family Up country
that's very, very benevolent and has opened their home to this Christmas
party and it's been a tremendous success. Things like that Keiki Kokua
can do, will do, they just need to be able to grow, expand, and really get
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their services going, and they can do that only with your help. The line
item in the budget really needs to be there and they need the help.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this evening? Seeing none. Thank you very much.
MR. JIM ST. JAMES: Good evening. I'm Jim St. James. I'm bringing up there
again tonight. I don't have any visual aids tonight--sorry about that--as of
the other night. In Lahaina we handed out to each ... for each one of you a
group of support letters written for Keiki Kokua and I'm sure they're in a
pile somewhere on your desk in your office. So tonight I'm going to take
three minutes of reading some of what was written in those letters so you
don't have to go through all of it. These are quotes from people who've
written letters.
Our kids have enjoyed the social support offered by Keiki Kokua at the
annual pizza party on the beach. It helps to lessen the stigma of being a
foster child when they interact with others in the same situation.
Additionally, we like being able to intermingle with other foster parents
and share our triumphs as well as our challenges.
Another letter from a teen foster youth who came to our annual Christmas
party. This is the best Christmas I ever had.
From a foster parent, Keiki Kokua helped me out so much I had so many
more options I did not know about. Thank you.
From an adopted child. Since moving to Maui I have had a number of
foster children spend time at my own condo hanging with my own
children. Yes, these foster kids have counselors and workers and
sometimes parole officers. All these people help, but they don't ... do not
have the connection and cannot make the difference like the foster parents
do. Keiki Kokua's family events are fun and prove that people care.
Probably the best thing Keiki Kokua does is connect foster and adoptive
parents together on Maui so they can help each other. It's too easy to feel
alone or think what is happening is only happening to you. Our
community should support these people who are doing the best they can in
helping the most vulnerable children we have - those you have been
abused or neglected.
A letter from an adoptive parent. Keiki Kokua provides an array of
resources and services that any adoptive or foster parent and their children

- 12 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Aprill,2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall

will find useful. I'm impressed by their aim to gather resources from the
parents and children themselves. In this way, Keiki Kokua ensures their
resources are highly leveraged and remain responsive and focused on the
needs of the family.
This is a letter from ... this is from a letter from an attorney who's a GAL
who's worked on Lanai and Molokai also - John Baker. I am particularly
pleased that they have special programs for teens in foster custody as that
group is often neglected.
And one more, this is from a foster mother who had eventually adopted a
special needs child. Lately, Keiki Kokua has helped me connect to an
excellent child care provider, one who provides much needed daycare for
me so I can continue working in my own business. The quality of the
provider relieve my anxiety about having the proper care for my special
needs infant. To put it simply, Keiki Kokua is the voice of all Maui
County foster parents. Please remember this testimony as you consider
funding for those ... for these much needed programs and services which
are only provided by Keiki Kokua. I did it all in three minutes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any questions, for the testifier? Seeing
none. Thank you very much for being here this evening. Members, the
next three testifiers will be testifying ... well, they come from Kihei Youth
Center - Kalani Kapahulehua, Piilani Goods, and Fiemea Hafoka. And if
you can lower the mic, that would be good. Thank you.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Aloha. My name is Kalani Kapahulehua. I am eight
years old and a new member at the Kihei Youth Center. Thank you for
helping the ... for helping Kihei Youth Center and also thank you for the
MEO bus taking me to the Kihei Youth Center from Kihei School.
Mahalo. My name is Kalani Kapahulehua.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Seeing none. Next testifier.

Members, any questions for Kalani?

MS. GOODS: Aloha. My name is Piilani Goods. My mom could not make it so
I am going to read this letter from her on her ... on my behalf. .. , (change
tape, start IE) . .. I would like to thank the Kihei Youth Center for all the
help they have give to my son and I. As a single parent it has been a
struggle with child care. I have had three jobs at one time and could not
handle the pressure and trying to find help watching my son as well as
finding the money. Not seeing my son day after day really broke my heart
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and put me in a bad place. In my life, the day I found out about the Kihei
Youth Center everything turned around for me in my very positive way. I
could finally see my son on a regular basis. I love them. KYC provides
education and fun activities and props, Friday night dinner. They have
been a good [sic] send for me and my son and I. We both love them.
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Next up is Fiemea Hafoka and we also have Hanalei Alapai.
MS. HAFOKA: Aloha. My name is Fiemea Hafoka. I am a proud member of
the Kihei Youth Center. I would like to thank you and the County of Maui
for providing funds to the Kihei Youth Center. We also want to say thank
you for supporting the MEO bus as this is how we get to the Kihei Youth
Center everyday after school. My mom told me how important the Kihei
Youth Center has been to her and her friends when they were younger.
They had ... they used to be members 25 years ago when the Kihei Youth
Center first opened their doors at the Kenolio Recreation Complex. Now
my mom is the Executive Director and she loves the Kihei Youth Center
very much and works hard to make it a safe and positive place. The staff
is wonderful and very caring. We feel safe and have tons of fun with our
other friends. We ask that you please continue funding the Kihei Youth
Center so we can celebrate another 25 years of youth services to Maui.
Mahalo, Fiemea Hafoka.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Next testifier.
MR. ALAP AI: Dear Mayor. .. Mayor Charmaine Tavares and Cabinet Members,
my name is Hanalei Alapai and I am a member of the Kihei Youth Center.
I would like to thank you for giving us money for the Kihei Youth Center.
I know that it takes lots of money to operate a youth center. I would like
to ask you to please continue supporting the Kihei Youth Center. I enjoy
going to the Kihei Youth Center because it is a safe place to be and we get
to do lots of fun things. I would also like to say thank you for supporting
the MEO bus. If it was not for the MEO bus, my friend ... my friends and I
would not be able to get to the Kihei Youth Center everyday after school.
Thank you, Hanalei Alapai.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you very much. The next testifier is John Miller.
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I'm sorry. You want to speak, sir, on behalf of the Kihei Youth Center?
John ... next one. Thank you.
MR. BALDWIN: Chairman, esteemed Members. We at the Youth Center would
like to thank you for your funding in the past and we would really hope
that we could get some more funding in the future. Today the bus was
over full. So in other words we have more kids coming to us than we
actually have seats on the bus. They will have to come back to the school
and pick up the next round of kids to bring them to us, basically is what
that's coming down to. A 2S-seat bus and it's full. We're growing every
single day. I see new parents coming in there and with our economic
times I feel that our funding is extremely important. We charge very little
for a membership and I think it's very important for the parents to have an
outlet that doesn't cost them a lot of money and they feel that their kids
are getting some kind of instruction. We try to get their homework down,
try to make sure they're fed, they're safe, they have fun, and they learn
how to play chess. Things like that - simple, everyday, learning how to be
a kid things. Okay. Our main concern is the quality of our old Kihei High
School.. .I mean old elementary school, as you well know, and our floor
looks nothing like this. There are holes everywhere. Kids are virtually
tripping on the floor. The field has bedrocks sticking out of the ground. It
is not a field. It's rocks with grass growing in between. It's basically
impossible for us to play baseball without kids getting hurt. We think that
the Goodfellow Brothers were going to somehow get together with us and
kind of give us some new dirt with the highway and everything but we're
really unsure. And to cut it short, we'd just like to thank you once again
for all your support and anything we can ... support we can get in the
future. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sir, can you identify yourself?
MR. BALDWIN: My name is Bill Baldwin.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. BALDWIN: Bill Baldwin, Staff Member, Kihei Youth Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Baldwin?
Member Victorino, followed by Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Bill. So you're saying that old
school right now the floor, that's the interior, has holes and very
dangerous for the kids to use?
MR. BALDWIN: Choke.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And have you requested money for. ..
MR. BALDWIN: I believe innumerous avenues - State, County, what have you.
Any, any avenue that we have I believe we've attempted to get help. The
fans are wobbling. I mean we basically need a lot of help inside just for
safety's sake, if nothing else.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct. And as far as the field is
concerned you're saying that that field had become nothing but bedrock
and grass?
MR. BALDWIN: Right. If you were to pull into the parking lot, you would see
the dome type -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. BALDWIN: --back stop. I, I invite you to walk up there from the parking
lot right past the bathroom and you will literally trip over rocks that are
sticking out of the ground. It's not rocks that just sit there. Those are
rocks that are actually part of the earth.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BALDWIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Have you spoken to the South Maui
Supervisor for the Parks and Recreation?
MR. BALDWIN: I'm not sure as far as ... how far that's gone to tell you the truth.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But have you spoken to 'em?
MR. BALDWIN: Personally?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
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MR. BALDWIN: I speak with Ray virtually everyday in my capacity as a board
member for Kihei Little League.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BALDWIN: However, you know, we try to get some of the tee baller guys
and the coach pitch guys out there. They're not necessarily diving and
sliding too much. They kind of bounce when they fall those ... that size
kid, you know. So we can kind of get some kids out there but no, not, not
per se. No, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the last question I have is you
mentioned about Goodfellows - are they ... are they going to bring in dirt
and kind of resurface that for you?
MR. BALDWIN: Well, that's ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean, you know, just kind oflevel it off?
MR. BALDWIN: That's something that I had heard about when I first started
working there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BALDWIN: And it was one of those things where, you know, we're trying
to get it out ... everything built around that area and I thought that maybe
there was some kind of talk about some extra dirt being lying around.
They were going to just come and like start throwing it out there, and you
know, just to try to make it playable.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How long have you worked for the Youth

MR. BALDWIN: About six months now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: About six months?
MR. BALDWIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

- 17 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Aprill,2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming and speaking with us
about the -MR. BALDWIN: My pleasure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --situation out there. You've only been
there six months. Do you know if, if the leadership has been able to
utilize the $125,000 that the Council budgeted last year. .. appropriated to
the Kihei Youth Center?
MR. BALDWIN: I'm virtually certain that every cent that we are allotted is put
towards some project that we have at the youth center itself.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: As far as -MR. BALDWIN: I'm not sure that we actually have-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --repamng ...
MR. BALDWIN: --received those, those funds. Otherwise, I'm pretty certain
that we would have repaired the floor. This is our Director here.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: My name is Lehuanani Huddleston-Hafoka.
I'm the Executive Director so I'd like to answer your question. We're in
the process of--I spoke to her on the phone--of acquiring the $120,000
grant. We do have to make some amendments to their current or to the
submitted grant that we turned in August. So we're working directly with
Lynn Britton and so forth so we're in the process of completing that
request that they have given me. Then the other thing 1 wanted to answer
is Mr. Victorino. 1 do have to make a clarification that there was no talk
whatsoever with Goodfellows committing to helping us. It was that we
were going to go out to the public and to ask whomever to assist us in
doing our share to make the field more playable and safe for the kids.
'Cause we believe that we cannot only expect the County to do it, we must
do our share. And I'm very confident that we can get many people to
assist us, and 1 will be talking to Mary Kielty who is terrific, a wonderful
supporter of the Kihei Youth Center. So 1 just wanted to clarify so there's
no misunderstanding or Goodfellow, you know, are thinking, well, 1 didn't
even talk to them. So ... but we'd love it if they would help us.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So do you know ... do you have a list of
what you're going to use the 125,000 for?
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MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: We have a detailed list that we're going to do
interior/exterior painting, fixing the floors. As Bill said, yes, they're held
down by duct tape but I understand other facilities are held down by duct
tape and we're really fortunate that we have duct tape. However, we do
have plans to do vinyl... I mean tile squares ... VCT squares in the entire
area, replace the carpets, fix the air conditioning, fix the ceiling tiles, the
fans, basketball lighting. We're looking into changing our lightings to be
more ... is it lead or lead friendly? I think. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Lead free.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Well, lead free, but there's that--what's that
term?--to make it more environmentally useful. So we're working with a
company that's giving us some information about doing that. So ... but we
have the $120,000 spent on paper. So youth center, the building itself is
ten years old. We're 25 years old in February. I was a 13 year old youth
member back when they opened in 1983 so I have the ... oh my goodness,
I'm drawing flies here. .., (chuckles) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Has the drainage problem been addressed or
is that part of the 120,000?
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: I, I don't think we had a draining ... a drainage
problem that I'm aware of.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A bathroom problem with drainage ...
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: No, it was just a general... some of the pipes I
think from, you know, wear and tear, but we've had people come in and
repair them for very minimal, if not, for free. We had this company that
donated most of the plumbing needs--Ferguson's--and so we had that
replaced already. So it's a typical wear and tear. We're doing our best to
keep it looking appealing, but I can tell you that it is in desperate need and
we are very confident that we will be getting the money really soon.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Good. The gentleman said that the number
of children have increased. Can you give us any numbers?
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Yeah, we're close to 400 youth members.
They're unduplicated, meaning every year on their anniversary, we have
them reapply. There's no transfers. You know, if we haven't seen them
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for two or three years, after one year if they don't apply, they have to
reapply. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you give us an average per day?
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: We have anywhere's between 30 on a very
slow day and then we have up to 60 kids. So today a lot of our kids
couldn't be here 'cause they're in baseball. Little League is on right now.
So we've been increasing our numbers. Therefore, we ask, you know, for
the increase that I put in the grant is just to support more staffing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, okay. And we'll see what we can do
about that field.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Okay. Terrific.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Thank you very much.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you. John.
MR. MILLER: Aloha, Council Members. My name is John Miller. I'm the
President of the Kihei Community Association. And I wanted to thank all
of you guys for coming out here this evening. I know you have a, a very
busy schedule and it's nice to see all of you here in Kihei. What I really
want to talk about this evening is two major projects and ... {inaudible} . ..
but I think it's very important to recognize where we are on Maui and
what we're dealing with and what our major challenges are right now.
And we're in a situation where we're on one of the most naturally
beautiful places in the world, and I mean from the shores of Haleakala to
the natural sea life, to our beaches, it's just ... there's no place like it.
Unfortunately, our built environment, especially here in South Maui,
hasn't matched anywhere near to what we have just as a natural island. I
think when you look at Kihei and when you drive down South Kihei Road
and when you see people trying to bicycle down the Piilani Highway, you
realize that we kind of have this haphazard area that's been thrown
together with, with strip malls and without a lot of thought for how people
are going to use the area. How it's going to be used by pedestrians? How
it's going to be used by bicyclists? How this area needs to be a
community so, so it's not just given over to, to shopping centers and
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people like get in their cars and motor around and get stuck, stuck in
traffic, but a real ... a real community of people that are interacting
everyday that are seeing each other as they walk down the street where
you have kids that are interacting with adults on their way to school or on
their way for a walk in the morning, on their way to work. And without a
lot better planning of how we're dealing with handling infrastructure,
handling our transportation, we're not going to have that.
We never laid the groundwork to begin with. You know, you see Kihei
just this piecemeal city that kind of sprung up without that groundwork
and you kind of see what's happened. And as, as we look towards the
steps we're going to have to take in rebuilding South Maui and rebuilding
Kihei, we, we need that groundwork in place. And the first thing I'm
going to ask you for is a plan. We need a plan on how we're going to deal
with pedestrian orientation and bicycling in South Maui. And, and that
plan for me is it needs to be ... we need to find a way to make people using
methods of alternative transportation more convenient than getting in a
car. And, and we were to do that they're going to have so many ancillary
community benefits. It's going to be greater than the sum of just getting
from Point to A. .. from Point A to Point B, but it's going to be having our
children, you know, a different way of getting to school and dealing with,
you know, kind of a lot of the health problems we have in our community
because, you know, people will have a chance to exercise in their daily
transportation route. And there's going to be so many ancillary benefits
just having people walk by each other in the morning as they're walking,
you know, to get a cup of coffee or to get a newspaper. And we need to
put that plan in place. So what I want to ask the Council for very
concretely is, is the funding to put together a comprehensive pedestrian
and bicycle transportation plan so as we redevelop and we rebuild and
make changes to our roadways, we can have ... we can have that covered
and thought of.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. MILLER: My second issue I want to get to is wastewater treatment. And I
think it's a crime that the fact is we're dealing with a water shortage right
now and that we're dumping into injection wells millions of gallons a day
of a useable resource ... a useable water that's percolating down into the
bedrock and freshwater stream and making way into the new shore waters.
And I don't know the last time you guys took a walk down the beaches of
North Kihei but it's an atrocity. And what used to be a vibrant sea life and
vibrant, you know, ocean, ocean area there is now just this bed of, you
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know, overgrown algae. And it's just ... it doesn't make any sense. You
know, you think about the fact that, you know, we have a water shortage
and then we have this huge amount of wastewater that's just more or less
being injected into the ground and it's causing these problems because of
the nutrients still left in that wastewater when it can be a great ... a great
source for it. And we need ... we need to address that and we need to
address the infrastructure requirements for that -MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MR. MILLER: --because when we move forward in the future that ... that's
something we're going to deal with. I'm out of time. I could go on but. ..
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you, John.
MR. MILLER: Sure.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for Mr. Miller? Seeing none.
Thank you again, John, -MR. MILLER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --and thank you for your patience.
followed by Kimo ... Kimoke [sic].

Sonia King,

MS. KING: Hello and thank you for coming to Kihei. I know it's a tough job
you have, and I just want to also say as a citizen and a Library Director,
thank you for the job you do. It's really important and I know that you
take your time and deliberate and I feel for you in a way. .., (chuckles) . ..
So I'm the Library Director at the Hawaii Business Research Library and
we're asking for continued support at the same level, 150K, and that's
under the OED budget. At the library, small business owners and
managers, business professionals, government, community, nonprofits,
organizations all find answers to questions. That's what we do all day.
Sometimes they're quick answers and we can give them immediately over
the phone. We're a digital library. We do a lot of our work electronically
and we do a lot of project work. Answers range from quick answers like
statistical demographics on Maui, like the numbers of commuters to Kihei.
Sometimes they're eight-hour long projects. That was the longest one last
year. We helped a new business start up, locate research industry
trans-competitive profiles that were developing a new nutraceutical
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product, a Maui-based business expanding their line so to us that's a
success story. Can't give any names out - everything's confidential.
Many times we simply assist with our expert research assistants. We use
our professional librarians and enable our clients to get the information
they need in half the time that they would have if they were looking for it
themselves. So we're saving them time and money and we're shortening
their learning curve and being able to get their information to them and
proceed on their path. Because, you know, you can look for something,
you can Google it, but if you want to go right where you need it when you
need it, then you call your librarian.
We also work in conjunction with colleagues like David Fisher at the
Small Business Development Center. We work hand in hand with his
business consulting and management services. Also, free to this ... to
clients helping start and expand businesses. Sometimes it's just helping
with human resources type of information or locating the right standards
or regulations which can be quite varied sometimes and even costly. So
we use our, our information network to try and get it for them for free or
borrow it from a library, this sort of thing which all takes times, but it does
save money.
I provided more in-depth testimony ... written testimony so feel free to read
that for more details on all the programs that we participate in. I called in
information network because we do participate in national programs and
statewide programs like the Hawaii State Data Center. That's how we get
a lot of our free demographics and then we package and compile it,
repackage it so it's easy for you guys to read. And the one main thing I
really wanted to come and tell you about .. .I mean you know we do the
Maui County Data Book and we do an electronic newsletter, but we've got
a new product coming out. It's going to be a quarterly economic
indicators so that's also in there our first ... kind of a rough draft but I
really wanted to show it to you guys because I think it can be really useful.
We're trying to present the data in tables and graphs so that you can just
easily digest that information and send it where you need it to go. So
thank you again and thank you for your support.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you again.
MS. KING: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Kimokeo Kapahulehua.
MR. KAP AHULEHU A: Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla and Council
Members. I'd like to introduce a parent from the youth center and just
give her a minute to speak.
MS. AIWOHI: Hi. Good evening, everyone. Thank you for coming out. I'm a
little nervous. As you can see 1 just came from work but 1 am so thankful
for Kihei Youth Center because without them 1 wouldn't be able to go to
work. They watch my children and they provide amazing services. My
daughter. .. 1 have two daughters that do go there, one full-time and she
catches MEO bus so I'm again thankful for that, and 1 have another one
who is up at Kamehameha but she also enjoys the youth center. And they
tried hula but because it was later in the evening it didn't work out. They
were tired but again it was available to them, you know, and we do
appreciate that. They also have ukulele and my oldest daughter is special
ed but they're working on her to try and learn because she wants to and
just as far as her self-esteem, you know, she has aides that help her at
school and what she gets from the youth center is so much more just to
help her in her daily life to make friends ... lifelong friends. And we've
truly become a family at the youth center and 1 thank Lehua and just all
the staff, Bill, he's worked with her so much. She's just more confident,
more outgoing now, not as kept to herself, and something that 1 can't
really do myself on my own because 1 am at work. 1 don't finish work
until maybe about five every evening and with that she's too old to go to
A-Plus. She's at intermediate now and they don't offer after school so
again it's, you know, a godsend for us and it's, you know, again, 1 came
into ... I'm so thankful for it because like a busy mom 1 forgot to sign up
my kids for PALS and 1 didn't know what to do with them and 1 can't stay
home because two weeks out of school is ... 1 get a week of vacation. So
again 1 didn't know where to turn to and Lehua said bring them and 1
packed their snacks and 1 sent them on their way and they had fun. They
did - they enjoyed it. So again if you could please put them in your
budget and remember them and all the families that they do provide so
much services to and that's it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. AIWOHI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Kimokeo.
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MR. KAP AHULEHUA: Thank you, Chairman Pontanilla and Council Members.
First of all, I want to thank Councilmember Anderson for including us in
that budget to repair the youth center and because of the policies and
procedure it has taken us this while but it is in there and we've been
working with the staff. And we're, we're just right there right now and we
had to do some changes according to what we did and we thank Lynn
Britton. I want to ask you to support the youth center. You heard our
children speak, our staff members speak, and everything. Our community
is growing. It's really big and the money you gave us we really, really
appreciate it and I think what you should look at ... that I look at all the
youth center and the Boys and Girls Club that we have in the County.
Please continue to support them. This evening you had the MEO
Y outhBank came up here and you can see what you have done and the
money that we put in our community for our young children. The
youngest to speak was my grandchild, his name was Kalani, and they all
from the youngest to the oldest, you have made a difference in our
County, including Molokai and Lanai, because we had them here for
conferences with us over here this year. And they thank you, Riki, for the
youth center that you guys are building a new building I think for them
over there in Lanai so they continue to support the youth. I mean you've
done a great job for that and we ask you to continue that.
And real briefly, I want you to support the BEST Program for MEO.
MEO has that BEST Program and you've seen the product in Lahaina
what was produced and we have the same in South Maui with that and
hopefully you hear more of that. MEO has so many programs and we'd
like to support that including the bus service. I want you to continue the
budget we have and look at our Police on South Maui. We have from
Maalaea or really what we have is from the Pali - this side of the Pali all
the way up to Makena and so continue to support the Police Department.
Our Fire Department you know that you have in the budget for Makena, I
mean not Makena, but Maalaea. So we ask you to continue to support the
Fire Department. This year I come as an individual to ask you to support
the Ocean Safety to be part of the Fire Department because we have
Ocean Safety in Parks and Recs and we would like to see that you
consider Ocean Safety to be part of the Fire Department. And we . . .
{inaudible} . .. had conversations with the new Fire Chief and telling him
what we doing and everything else so we appreciate you guys doing that.
Community Work Day is a big thing for us in all of Maui but also in South
Maui community picking up whatever Dana told you this evening calling
us out for volunteer work to pick up a refrigerator, appliances, asking the
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cars to be marked and everything, working with the Police Department. In
South Maui we have a great, great partnership with the community and
our, our departments we have down here. There's not a situation that the
Parks and Rec, the staff you have, Mary and Ray, even with what we told
you tonight that our staff in South Maui works really, really hard. We
have the most parks in the County of Maui in South Maui so the staff you
have here and the amount of people we have they do a fabulous job. And
the partners that we have with the Rotary ...
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. KAP AHULEHUA: Thank you so much. Appreciate. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Kimokeo. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you again for being here. Steven Baker,
followed by Stephen Pawlak. Rob Maxow [sic]. Members, these are all
from the Maui Family YMCA. Annie Gomes and Laura Marzke.
MR. MADOW: Council Members, my name is Rob Madow. I'll speak after but
Steve Baker and Laura Marzke could not be here tonight and then I'll go
after these guys.
MR. PAWLAK: Good evening. My name is Steve Pawlak and I'm here to talk
about the YMCA after school program and what it means to me and my
family. Both my wife and I work full-time and so having this program
available to us really means a lot to us. Pretty much what happens is my
son goes to Kamalii School and then after school is pau they go get
checked in to their after school program and then Stacy and her staff take
care of them all day long or all evening long until we're able to pick 'em
up. That allows me to get off at five o'clock and sometimes you get that
last minute phone call and you can't get there right then so you got that
hour, you know, grace period, whatever, to get there by six o'clock and
pick them up ... pick my son up. My son always talks about how much fun
he has there. I mean we probably spend a good half hour, hour of our
evening just talking about what he did at school and most of the times it's
about what he'd done at the YMCA program there. Knowing that Stacy
and her staff are well equipped and, and safety is a big issue with them,
it's nice to know that your son or your child is taken care of and that you
don't have to really worry about that. It truly is a blessing. And in closing
I just like to ask, ask for your continued support of the YMCA program
and thank you for your past support. Thank you.

- 26-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Aprill,2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for being here tonight. What is the
charge for one child?
MR. PAWLAK: My charge because I'm a member of the YMCA is $55 a month
for the after school program and then Camp Nalu which is held ... which is
another great thing about it is the days that school is off because of a
holiday or whatever, or you know, it doesn't coincide with my holidays,
they have what they call Camp N alu and that, that fee I believe is $14 a
day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, great. Thank you very much.
MR. PAWLAK: Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
testifier? Seeing none.

Members, anymore questions for the

MR. PAWLAK: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier on YMCA.
MS. GOMES: Aloha, Chairman Pontanilla and fellow Council Members. I'd
like to start by saying this is the first hearing I've ever been to and I've
been sitting in back listening to the testimonies and I have to say, oh my
goodness, I am so happy that I made Maui my home. I've heard voice
after voice speak up for something they believe passionately about, trying
to help children, families, make the island better, make the planet better. I
just think it's wonderful. So I think you're all doing a great job.
Okay, with that, my testimony. My name is Annie Gomes. I've lived in
Kihei for 16 years. I'm here to talk about how my family has benefited
from the YMCA's help. I'm a recently divorced mother of two young
children and in the past two years, especially, we've been faced with
numerous hurdles. .., (change tape, start 2A). . . I believe it has affected
my six year old son the hardest and since he has started attending the Y
programs, including Camp Nalu, the positive changes in him are obvious.
My son has come a long way and continues to grow as a respectful, caring
individually ... individual. I believe much of the credit goes to the
incredible staff that has worked with us. Each staff member under Stacy's
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direction has shown all of our children that each one is special and loved
and has endless potential. The moral growth I have seen in my son
amazes me and he has learned to take responsibility for his actions and the
choices he makes throughout the day. That's huge and I'm very proud of
him. So many children like mine are taking those positive steps and
making good choices because of the examples the YMCA family shows
them.
I work two different jobs. My busy work schedule keeps me away from
my son. I find comfort knowing that he is in a Y program. Knowing that
he is safe and is being cared for by responsible people with an endless
amount of patience and love certainly takes away a lot of my worry. Even
though I try I'm unable to provide all that my children need. In this past
year, our financial situation has changed dramatically. It is the scholarship
program that makes everything possible for my family. The bottom line is
without that assistance my son would not be able to participate. I do not
know where I could ... where I could send him that he would receive this
level of care and all the opportunities that come along with being a
member of the YMCA. We are blessed to have these people and programs
like A-Plus and Camp Nalu. I must say how grateful I am to the Maui
Family YMCA for all they have done to help my family.
In closing, I realize that we are here tonight asking for additional funding
for these programs. I certainly hope you see our children's needs, hear our
pleas for your help, and allocate these funds. Thank you. Mahalo and
God bless.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you very much.
MS. GOMES: Thank you.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Good job.
MS. GOMES: Thank you.
MR. MADOW: My name is Rob Madow, a Kihei resident for the last 20 years.
Members of the Council, thank you for coming out tonight and letting us
tell you our concerns and our desires to help the community. I moved
here 20 years ago, went to work for a bank for the name Mike Lyons, who
many of you know, corralled me the first week and said, Rob,
congratulations, you're the treasurer of the Maui Family YMCA Capital
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Campaign, your meeting's on Friday - this was Thursday. And so
begin ... we didn't have a Y at the time and I've been on the Board for 20
years now. We still had programs. We had Camp Keanae and we had
after school care. The Y on an international level is the largest after
school and child care watch in the world. I didn't know that at the time.
And we were in the process of building our first building - swimming
pool, swimming lessons, and all the visions that we had. And we were
able to accomplish that and we were able to accomplish the second phase
of the building, and we're into a third phase now because the demand is
there. The programs work. We're out in the community in Kihei,
Up country, Lahaina, all around, Molokai even, and it's been an incredible
experience. My first Y experience was when I was five years old. This is
over 50 years ago ... more than that even and I've been a Y member or, or
on or off for that entire time through high school, through college,
wherever I lived, pretty much the Y was always where I went. It was
affordable.
The Y's mission statement says that we won't turn anybody away for
inability to pay. That's still true today. We don't necessarily give it to
'em for free but we make it available to everyone and that's something I
can live with very comfortably because I think that it's necessary. In, in
times are difficult to have a place to go where you can be with people,
maybe get some exercise working to either team sports or just any kind of
programs that the Y has. It gives you an hour or two away from the hectic
pace of the day and maybe gets you reenergized to, to commit to doing it.
The Y is a big believer in the community. Our outreach is extensive. And
you've heard the numbers from Mike and the other folks. I don't need to
repeat those. We really want to thank you for your gift last year. It's a
wonderful start. We really like to see you help us again this year if you
would and throughout this campaign which will give us the opportunity to
probably double the amount of people we're able to help. So thank you
very much for your time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you very much. Laura Mark, Mark [sic].
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Laura's not here.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Laura's not here. Coralie Willett.
MS. WILLETT: Good evening, Board [sic] Members. I'm Coralie Willett. By
the way ... and I'm a recent board member of the Maui Humane Society.
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And sitting here for the last hour listening and watching all the children in
the audience there's nothing more emotionally compelling than to watch
the kids and be very proud I'm sure of all of them that testified for all their
various causes. What's for me it ... is emotionally charging is the care of
our animals in the community. And I just joined the Board of the Humane
Society about three or four months ago so I'm new to it and I must tell you
I was astounded when I went over to the facility and looked to see what
we have there and what goes on there. It is ... it's a wonderful facility.
We're very proud of it, but it, it's just the numbers ... the sheer numbers of
animals that go through that facility each year blows your mind. Jocelyn
Bouchard, our CEO, is here and she's provided me with some, some
interesting statistics. It's ... last year, for instance, the shelter provided care
for excess of 10,000 animals. They did a spay and neuter program of over
4,500 animals last year. They responded to over 8,000 calls from the
public. We found loving families and homes for over 1,800 orphan pets
and they reunited about 800 people with their pets that were lost. You
have been very generous in the past to support us and I think really what
we want to do is just to ask you again to continue your support. The
Human Society just provides such a vital service to the community. We
hope to be able to continue to do that and we again ask for your support
and generosity. You've been very generous in the past and I hope that
will continue. Thanks very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thank you for your testimony. Jeny Bissell, followed by Jesus Baltazar,
followed by Amanda Perez.
MS. BISSELL: Good evening and buenos noches, Honorable Pontanilla and
Members of the Council. Thank you for all of the wonderful gifts that you
are giving to our community to keep our community safe, healthy, and fun
for our children and their families. Thank you for the opportunity to
express my support to Enlace Hispano of the Maui Economic Opportunity.
It is with great honor to be with you and the citizens of Maui and thank
you for coming to South Maui. My name is Jeny Ramos Bissell, a Maui
citizen for about 40 years and a registered nurse for 20 years at the State of
Hawaii Department of Health on Maui. I'm here to express my support
for the Enlace Hispano program of the Maui Economic Opportunity. The
Maui District Health Office Family Health Services Section of the State of
Hawaii Department of Health's mission is to assure the availability of an
access to preventive and protective health services for individuals and
families by providing leadership in collaboration with communities and
public/private partners.
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Enlace Hispano has an ... has an established collaborative partnerships with
the Maui women, infants, children, WIC supplemental nutrition program
at the Maui District Health ... of the Maui District Health Office,
Department of Health. Enlace Hispano collaborates with the Maui WIC
Program and provides Spanish interpretation translation services to the
Hispanic community with limited English proficiency. Enlace Hispano
provides community outreach to the Latino WIC participants and clients
and to the Latino WIC-eligible population on the island of Maui. The
collaborative partnerships between Enlace Hispano and the Maui WIC
Program have increased access and utilization of nutrition and health care
services by the Hispanic community. The support from Enlace Hispano
has contributed to the improved efficiency of service delivery and has
improved nutrition for low income women, infants, children in the
Hispanic community.
Enlace Hispano reaches hundreds of people annually and was able to hand
out hundreds of pamphlets and brochures and made appropriate and timely
referrals to the Maui WIC Program and to our community partners. The
Maui WIC Program of the Maui District Health Office of the State
Department of Health respectfully offers our support to Enlace Hispano.
It will result in significant long-term benefit to the people of the County of
Maui. Again, mahalo, dios ti agngina, maraming salamat po, and muchos
gracias to the Members of the Council and the citizens of Maui. Aloha
and may God bless each and everyone of you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you for your testimony.
MS. HAHN: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Viviana Hahn. I
work for Enlace Hispano and this is Jesus Baltazar and I'm going to be his
interpreter.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Thank you for being here supporting the Enlace Hispano.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
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MS. HAHN: My name is Jesus Baltazar. I live in Maui since ... for three years
now without knowing any English. A friend of mine referred me to MEO
where the Enlace Hispano is and I'm glad he did it because I found here
much orientation.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: I had the necessity to go to the doctor and here they oriented me
translating everything I had to say to the doctor.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: To get my driver license they gave me a book of rules of transit in
Spanish.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Enlace Hispano has given me brochure, a book, and a DVD with
information about health.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Through Enlace Hispano I connected with a group ofMCC directed
by Molly Fleming -MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: --to practice English.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Now at work I understand what they told me.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Once again, thank you for giving us the opportunity to count with
the Enlace Hispano.
MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Because I don't know what we would do without them.
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MR. BALTAZAR: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Thank you and good night.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this evening? Seeing none. Thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. BALTAZAR: Thank you.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Good night. Thank you for being here.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: My name is Amanda Perez-Martinez.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: I live in Maui for two years now.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Thank you for supporting the MEO Enlace Hispano Program.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: I have health problems and Mrs. Viviana have been always with me
in my appointments to the doctor.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: I had good care from the doctors.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Thank you to Enlace Hispano.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: I go to them every time I receive letters.
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MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: They're with me every time I need to go to the doctors and they're
always with me every time I need them to interpret.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Thank you to all the Members that help us.
MS. PEREZ-MARTINEZ: ... (Speaks in Spanish) . ..
MS. HAHN: Thank you to all of the Enlace Hispano Program members, Sylvia,
Leonardo, Hilly [sic], Viviana, and God bless you all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers?
Seeing none. Thank you again.
MS. HAHN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ray and Cindy Volu [sic] ... Valuis [sic], followed by
Debra Ray.
MS. VALOIS: Good evening. We'll make this really quick. I'm Cindy Valois.
My husband Ray Valois. We just came from work as well. We own
South Maui Choppers. We're in our fifth year of business and we took the
MEO Four Core class in February of this year and trying to get ... 'cause
we're growing. We're getting bigger. We need to restructure our finances
and we needed guidance for that. That class was wonderful. It was fun, it
was very informative, and it put us in contact with a lot of great resources
to the whole County. And that's all I have to say about that. It was great.
You have anything to say? ... (speaking to Mr. Valois) . ..
MR. VALOIS: If any of you folks have or the Council Members are wondering
about the class, maybe you should take yourself and check it out. It's a
good class.
MS. VALOIS: Great class.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers?
Okay. Member Baisa. You have a question, rna 'am.
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MS. VALOIS: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good evening and thank you for coming.
keep it short. Were you eligible or did you ask for a micro-loan?

I'll

MS. VALOIS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You were able to do it. ..
MS. VALOIS: I didn't ask for any money. We took the class. We're expanding
and I didn't go for them for money. We went for knowledge.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Wonderful. And so you're pleased with the class?
MS. VALOIS: Very pleased.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
MS. VALOIS: You're very welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Debra Ray.
MS . RAY: Yes. Hello. I'm here to talk about the MEO Business Development
Corporation. My name is Debra Ray and I live in Kihei. I own and
operate the Maui Stuffed Animal Shelter for six months now. What my
business is, is if you've ever heard of Build a Bear on the mainland, I've
taken the concept and gone holoholo. We have parties, events. I work in
hotels, special occasions. And through my loan I was able to purchase
supplies and have a portable stuffing machine made that I can bring
unstuffed animals to life. MEO's Microenterprise has helped me by
obtaining my loan. MEO Business Development Corporation helped me
with my business plans and in just six months I'm applying for another
loan to expand my business. I had been turned down by other financial
institutions and if it wasn't for their believing in me and my vision, I
would not be in business today. So this is why I strongly recommend that
the funding proposed in the Mayor's Budget for MEO Microenterprise be
approved. Thank you, Council Members, for the opportunity to speak and
I thank you for your past support.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Now I have a loan recipient. Can
you share with us what that loan application process was like? Was it an
easy comfortable thing?
MS. RAY: Yes, it was. You know, I'd always seen the ads in the paper. I had
thought about this business idea for over a year and sat on it and I always
saw ads in the paper advertising that if you needed a loan, you could go to
MEO. So I went with it and then the staff there was really helpful and
they help you get through your business plan and what you have to write
for it. And yes, it was easy.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Very good. Have you gotten to the point where
you have any employees?
MS. RAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Not yet?
MS. RAY: No, not yet. But I'm sure in the next six months I will.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Very good. Thank you.
MS. RAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you. Chris Valdez, followed by Tony
Fisher. And Members, as soon as Mr. Fisher provides his testimony we
will be taking a short recess. Chris.
MR. VALDEZ: Thank you. I come tonight to represent MEO BEST Program for
integration. I am currently a participant in the MEO BEST Unification
Program. I would like to thank MEO for all of the support that they have
given to the BEST Program and the people that are involved in the BEST
Program. Through the BEST Program I was able to reunify with my
family and coming out of the facilities at MCCC' s it's real hard at first to
get back into the community and get started, and through the BEST
Program and all the programs that they provide, it was a smoother ... a
smoother route getting back with my family and getting back into situation
currently. I've been in the program for about a year. Currently, I just
started my own company ... my business. I've opened up a construction
company and through BEST Program and with the help of them. So I
would just like to thank the BEST Program for that and I'd like to thank
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the County Council for the support that they had given the BEST Program
and for continued support.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thank you very much for being here and congratulations. Tony Fisher.
MR. FISHER: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Tony Fisher. I
want to talk about three things. The first and it's always the one that I talk
about, is I've lived all over the country and I have never found any
organization like MEO, which does everything from keiki to kupunas to,
you know, what she was just talking about the, the ... it's absolutely
outstanding. And if you ... if you get to be the director of something, you
can end up on the County Council I understand .... (laughter) . ..
The other. .. the second point is the ... is the Kaunoa Senior Center. I have
been involved in senior centers back on the mainland and I have never
seen one that was so, so doggone good at putting things in the hands of the
seniors. And I know you guys really support it so if there's anything you
can help do, promote, build that baseyard. We need to go find a place to
put all those buses that take people all over the place.
Now the third one you can probably guess. It's called COMET and on the
15th , the Mayor wrote in the paper that the tax assessments were only
going up 2 percent. And there's some people sitting on this Council who
have heard me sit and testify on innumerable occasions that if you
changed to a tax reform concept that we had suggested, it would bring in
more money. And people have sat in this meeting and others and said,
that's not true, Tony, it's not the way it works. I want you to know that
had you implemented this last year instead of having a $5 million increase,
which is what is in your budget, you would have had a $20 million
Increase.
Budgets are made up of two parts, as you know, income and expenses.
Wouldn't it be nice to be sitting here this evening and saying, you know
what, we've got $15 million more to spend this year, than we would have
had under the old system? And the numbers are there if you read my
viewpoint article on Sunday, that's exactly what it was trying to get
across. Absolutely, positively, it has proven this thing completely and I
really would love to have the opportunity to sit down.
Somebody has suggested the idea of a tax forum in which the community
could be brought together, like the TVR thing was done a while ago, and
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sit down and, and discuss all of the different aspects and ideas that people
have. We don't claim to have and COMET doesn't claim to have our way
or the highway kind of an approach, what we say is we've got an idea.
Two parts - cap the taxes at 4 percent and reassess when property changes
hands. I gave this afternoon to Sheri Morrison, a copy of a great deal of
material on this subject, and gave you, Chairman, Mr. Pontanilla, this
evening a copy of that. We would love to ... it ... next year is going to be
worse.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. FISHER: I want you all to sit there and think about the fact that if you only
got five million more this year, you may go negative next year. That's
what the economy is doing and Aloha Airlines didn't help it. But I thank
you all. So many people in this room who have been so supportive of
COMET over the years, we're on your side. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Tony.
testifier? Seeing none.

Members, any questions for the

MR. FISHER: No, Joe. You already said after this, there's going to be a break.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, after they ask you questions. . .. (chuckles) . .
Thank you. Mr. Fisher, like I say, is the last testifier and at this time it's
about 7:32. Members, if we can take like a ten-minute recess? Some
Members are saying 13 minutes so we'll reconvene at 7:45. This meeting
IS III recess. .., (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

7:32 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:45 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: .., (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. The next set of testifiers are from the MEO
Head Start Program. We do have Sylvia Reilly, Janice Young, and
Angela Varano.
MS. REILLY: Hi. I'm a teacher with Kihei A Head Start and I'm proud to be
here. Mrs. Baisa was once my boss and I'm glad to see her. I am here to
ask you to continue funding us for all the many reasons and I can tell you
very easily, but I'm going to let the people who are in the
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program ... involved in the program to testify and tell you their personal
expenence.
MS. VARANO: I wrote a letter 'cause I'm not going to talk in front of people.
Okay. The Head Start Program has helped our family in many ways. I
have three children. My oldest over here is now eight years old and was in
the program for two years. After staying home for three years I was able
to start working and pitching in with dad to buy a reliable vehicle for our
family. Then I had two more children, ages three and four, now in the
Head Start Program, and one is going on to kindergarten and the other has
one more year left. This past year with Regina's information and support I
was able to start my own residential cleaning service. I also made another
go on getting my GED with Regina's positive support. Last year, the
program even helped me on getting my license for the first time. So the
Head Start Program has helped our families in many ways with them. Us
parents can provide a better future for our children.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Can you identify yourself, please?
MS. VARANO: What's that?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Identify yourself.
MS. VARANO: Oh, my name is Angela Varano.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. VARANO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier.
MS. YOUNG: Hi. My name is Janice and I am a single mom and I go to school
part-time and I'm now able to work part-time as well, and the program is
awesome. My son ... when I go to pick up my son and over the weekend
he tells me all these new things that he learns at the school and I really ... I
really like that. That's so good. And so I would like to ask you if you can
continue funding and so I can have my son go to school for the summer
school program. That would be great. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you. Next testifier.
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MS. REILLY: I also have testimonies from families who are not able to make it
tonight so who can I give this to?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Our Committee Secretary on the left ... my left. That's
it? Sylvia not here?
MS. REILLY: Oh, I'm Sylvia.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, you are Sylvia. Thank you. Laurence Christopher,
followed by Mark Simon.
MR. CHRISTOPHER: Good evening, Chair and Members. Thank you very
much. I'm here to talk about alternative energy tonight. The reason I'm
here is because two weeks ago, Rep. Joe Bertram introduced a resolution
called, incentive encouraging the use of alternative energy sources. I'd
like to just paraphrase a little bit of what he said. Petroleum constitutes 90
percent of Hawaii's energy needs. This leaves us vulnerable to oil
embargoes, supply disruptions, market dysfunctions, et cetera. Petroleum
also negatively impacts our environment.
Hawaii has an abundance of renewable energy which if used would
achieve broad societal benefits of self-sufficiency, environmental
sustainability, economic development and job creation, and can be
increased by providing tax incentives for their purchase and installation.
The 2008 Legislature supports a tax incentive such as abatement . . .
(change tape, start 2B) . .. ofthe general excise tax on such purchases and
installations.
We thank Joe for putting this thing in. This is very important. In addition
to the abatements of the GET, assuming it gets passed, which by the way
on Friday it's passed all of the House Committees and it is now into the
Senate. In addition to the GET, we have a Hawaiian income tax credit of
$5,000 for their installations. We have $2,000 from a Federal standpoint
which can happen several times because it's renewed every year if you're
splitting your installation.
Where is Maui County on this? Well, last year you folks provided
$100,000 to implement an incentive program reducing the property
assessments by $25,000 for each kilowatt installed. Mayor Tavares
astonishingly vetoed that item, yet provided no incentives for alternative
energy in this year's budget. I'm here to ask you folks to please put it
back on. It's important.
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There is a quote that I came across recently, author - Antoine de
Saint-Exupery, "As for the future, your task is not to foresee it but to
enable it".
Some stats. We have a small system. We have four kilowatts. That's
enough to power our house. We save 40 gallons of oil a month. That's
the ... that's the trade off - there is no 40 gallons. Okay. Together in Maui
we have a little over 1,000 kilowatts installed today. That's 2,785
42-gallon barrels saved per year right now. If. .. well, it's interesting that
even now Maui County continues to charge us permit fees -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. CHRISTOPHER: --for alternative energy. What kind of logic is that? Is
there any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
testimony for us, please?

Yeah.

Could you leave your written

MR. CHRISTOPHER: I will indeed. Give it to the secretary?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you.
MR. CHRISTOPHER: Anybody else?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No thank you, Chair. Member Anderson asked
the question I was going to ask. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. So if you can leave your testimony with our
secretary to my left at the far end. Mark Simon, followed by Shawna
Fischer.
MR. SIMON: Aloha. I'm Mark Simon. I'm Director of Marketing at the Four
Seasons here in Wailea. As Director of Marketing, I'm responsible for
sales and public relations and promotions and advertising of our resort and
bringing visitors to Maui. I work very closely with the Maui Visitors
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Bureau and that's what I'm here to testify, and thank you for your past
support, and hopefully, future. We work very hard with the Maui Visitors
Bureau ... very closely with them to attract visitors as you may ... well, as
I'm sure you know we're ... we as a destination have some serious
challenges now due to the economy and we were just looking at April,
May, and June, the visitor counts are significantly down. There's lots of
things that we can do, do about it and we've been doing 'em, but we
not ... we didn't just say, well, April's down, let's start working on it now.
We started working on this back in September oflast year. So there's lots
of strategy, lots of planning, and lots of actions going out and talking to
travel agents and visitors and just trying to get the word out about coming
to Maui. So we, we really need your support for that.
When I was thinking about this thing, I was thinking, well, it's not only
the big hotels that benefit from visitors that come in. So last week I
interviewed one of our guests, and they came from San Diego, and it was
very interesting 'cause I just asked them, well, tell me what you did along
every step of the way. And I thought it was interesting because they flew
Hawaiian Airlines--thank goodness--in from San Diego, they took a taxi
from the airport to get to the hotel. When they got to the hotel, we greeted
them with lei. After that they went to Star Market to get some beer and
some snacks and some soda for their ... in their hotel room. The next day
they took a snorkel cruise. They had dinner at four local restaurants
during their five-night stay. They played golf one day. They bought gifts
and snacks from ABC and Hilo Hattie's. The guy got a tattoo. ..,
(chuckles). .. They went down to Makena for a snorkel cruise and they
bought some fish tacos from that stand. They bought a boogie board.
They rented a car for one day and went to Hana. They bought lunch in
Hana. They bought a piece of art in Hana. They bought gas to get back.
They went to the Maui Ocean Center one day. They had breakfast two
days at the Kihei Cafe down here and they bought some t-shirts from the
little market right next door. All in all that's 22 local businesses that these
two guests supported - one room. And I thought that was kind of a neat
thing because it's not all about the hotels, it's about all the other local
businesses that we support. That doesn't even count the fact that we buy
our produce for their salads and for their sandwiches from local, local
vendors and so on. So thank you very much. I also wanted to tell you that
our hotel alone just -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
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MR. SIMON: --Wailea employs over 900 employees and they'll pay obviously
taxes and what have you. Thank you very much for your past support and
hopefully in the future.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Simon, thank you for being here. As a
Director of Marketing could you share with us what your annual
marketing budget is for the Four Seasons?
MR. SIMON: I don't know if that would be appropriate, but it's actually very
small. We don't do much in the way of advertising. We do a lot of public
relations so we pay public relations professionals to get the word out,
about ... to write articles about how wonderful Wailea is, how wonderful
Maui is, and so on. But I, I don't think I can share that number. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you depend on the Maui Visitor Bureau
to do most of the advertising to bring people to Wailea?
MR. SIMON: We do and we work very closely with their public relations people,
with their sales people, we travel together. We work hard to, to have a
coordinated effort so that we can take our small advertising and promotion
budgets and pool them together to, to get the word out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
money to the MVB?

And, and does your hotel contribute any

MR. SIMON: Oh, yes. We do.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How much is that?
MR. SIMON: I don't have that number in my head. I'm sorry, but I know it's,
it's quite large.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Maybe we could get
that information?
MR. SIMON: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
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MR. SIMON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, anymore questions for the testifier? Seeing
none. That was terrific information that you provided this Committee in
regards to one room and the number of businesses they frequented. So
thank you for that information.
MR. SIMON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
followed by John Davis.

The next testifier

IS

Shawna Fischer,

MS. FISCHER: Good evening, Councilmen. My name is Shawna Fischer. I'm a
second grade teacher at Kahului Elementary School. I am here to ask for
continued support and funding for the MACC. The MACC provides arts
in the schools and professional development for teachers. Prior to coming
to Maui I taught for three years on the Big Island and so I'm familiar with
a community that doesn't have a resource like the MACC. And I've seen
the difference that having the Maui Arts and Cultural Center brings to the
schools. A lot of the elementary schools no longer have P.E. teachers or
music teachers and so the Maui Arts and Cultural Center brings in teachers
for creative drama and for creative movement. They also ... all the
standards that the students need to learn, I have to teach myself, and the
MACC provides professional development for teachers teaching me how
to teach the fine arts standards and performing drama standards and how
to integrate it into my curriculum.
Teaching in the Hawaii schools we have a problem with attendance - the
students coming to school everyday. And the research and my own
experience have shown that when kids come to ... or when there's arts in
the schools that kids come to school more often. So thank you for your
support and I'd like ... any questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier this evening?
Seeing none. Thank you very much for your testimony. John Davis,
followed by Patricia Rouse.
MR. DAVIS: Good evening. Aloha, Ladies and Gentlemen of the County
Council. I'm also asking for continued support for the Maui Arts and
Cultural Center. My name is John Davis. I work as a first grade teacher at
Pomaikai Elementary School and in addition to the professional
development that we get as teachers, some of the benefits that the students
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get are techniques on how to deal with conflict resolution, empathy to role
play, design strategies in art, and cooperative learning skills. So with
those things, the professional development and our goal for the future, is
to steer our kids into performance based on how to take their skills and
apply it to our community. I think that if you could support the Maui Arts
and Cultural Center, that will allow us to continue with teaching our
children a performance arts based curriculum. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thank you for being here. Patricia Rouse, followed by Alan Raikes.
MS. ROUSE: Hello, Council. It made it very easy for me to testify because
you're here and thanks very much. My name is Patricia Rouse. I'm a
volunteer with the Maui Long Term Care Partnership. The partnership has
volunteers all over the island and I have been pleased to be able to
represent South Maui over the past four years. I'd like you to continue to
support the Long Term Care Partnership. It's actually in transition. We're
actually in transition for the name even. Now we're going to be the Aging
with Aloha Partnership. And since you did support us in Fiscal Year '08,
as part of this transition, we have begun to work closely with the Maui
Community College to provide the workforce that is needed so that our
kupuna can stay in their homes.
So what we're asking for this year for '09 is for you to continue to support
us in the amount of $300,000 in order to support the workforce that is both
trained and skilled which would come from MCC. These would be nurse
assistants and personal care assistants and the second part of that funding
is also going for the volunteer caregivers aspects of the Maui Long Term
Care Partnership. And actually, we're hoping to grow the volunteer
caregivers from the ... from the numbers that we have had so far which are
about 80 over the past three years and you can imagine these numbers just
need to continue to grow. So we're certainly hoping that you will
continue to support the partnership over the next year. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this evening? Seeing none. Thank you for being here. Allan Raikes,
followed by Gary Elster.
MR. RAIKES: Aloha, my name is Allan Raikes. I'm President of Condominium
Rentals Hawaii. We're a Kihei-based business since 1982 and we employ
50 people plus a lot of independent contractors. I'm also a member of the
board for Maui Visitors Bureau. I'm here today to thank you for your past
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support for the Visitor Bureau and request level funding for the coming
fiscal year. Maui Visitors Bureau has done an excellent job of getting
Maui out there and making 'em top of mind destination, and going up
against competition throughout the world and that competition continues
to improve its product every year. Mexico has got fabulous resorts. The
Caribbean's out there. They're all trying to get a piece of that overseas
traveler. And like the Four Seasons, our advance bookings are looking
soft. We've had the luxury of last four, five years of having just banner
years, but it is softening quite a bit, and without the support of the Visitor
Bureau we won't be able to get the message out there.
Unlike the Four Seasons, our company does spend money on advertising.
1 expect to spend about $600,000 with our small company on advertising
and marketing this coming year. But we do rely on the Visitor Bureau to
get the message out there that Maui is the place to be and then 1 feel it's
our job to then go to the customer and say, while you're coming to Maui,
come stay in our condos. Anyway, 1 wrote a bunch of stuff and way off
script here. So, you know, 1 know that the County gets somewhere in the
neighborhood of $20 million through the transient accommodation tax
every year, not to mention the hotel room rate ... hotel rate tax that the
individual condominium owners pay and the property tax that the hotels
pay. It comes ... 1 don't know, you folks know the numbers better than 1
do, but the industry pays a huge amount of tax and with a weak industry
that revenue, especially on the TAT is going to decline and we won't have
the funds to support all these worthy causes here tonight. So thank you for
your past support and please consider for our future. Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this evening? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
correct?

Just real quickly.

Mr. Raikes,

IS

that

MR. RAIKES : Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much for sitting through
the night here to testify. 1 didn't get the whole name of your organization.
Condo ...
MR. RAIKES: Condominium Rentals Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Condominium Rentals Hawaii.
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MR. RAIKES : Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
information.

Okay.

Thank you very much for the

MR. RAIKES: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Gary Elster, followed by George Rixey.
MR. ELSTER: Mr. Chair and Members of the Council, I'm Gary Elster. This is
George Rixey. He and I have been working on the roundabout for four
years now through two Administrations both of whom have supported the
building of a roundabout. And unfortunately, our Public Works
Department has been less than enthusiastic about it. However, following
your support last year and the Mayor's support of the roundabout, we have
been working with the Mayor's Office and Public Works and meeting
with them about every six weeks. And they ... the only way we know to
get them to build it is to keep the fire to their rear ends and it's exactly
what we're doing. We need you to renew your support. The numbers
increased this year over last--why?--not because we think it will cost any
more to build, but because Public Works has thrown in archeology and
water and a whole bunch of other things that they say goes into this even
though we're talking about building a roundabout in a small area than the
existing paved area in the intersection. But these are their roadblocks
they've thrown up and we want to get this built and we think we're at the
stage where this can be put out to bid this summer--at least that's what
they told us--but we need to have this project and we need the Council to
call their bluff and be ready to support this project.
We think it can be built for less. We think it may even be a project that
could qualify for STIP funds this summer if the project's ready to go and
another one falls through. We, we have talked to other partners who may
support this and be able to reduce the total cost. So the only way to build
the million dollar project is to build the 2Yz ... at least to support a $2.5
million project, and if you do, we will pledge along with other members,
Don Couch and Dave Frazier, who've been sitting in on these meetings,
we will pledge to keep the fire to them and also to get some accountability
on it and get this first demonstration roundabout built. We know it will be
a great asset to the community. George wanted to just add a couple words.
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MR. RIXEY: Okay, thank you. Good evening and aloha. I just wanted to say
one thing real quick. As far as road design and intersection design is
concerned, I think the introduction of a roundabout or roundabouts on
Maui is the most essential thing we can do to preserve our sense of ohana
here and lifestyle here on Maui. So I strongly urge you to please help us
get this first one in. It's going to be successful. Everybody will see it's
safe, it works, and it will be a good thing for Maui. So I appreciate your
support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, guys. Thank you so much for keeping
the fires burning on whoever's okole here - flaming. .., (chuckles). .. So
none of the money has lapsed, all the money is going forward, right? And
the only thing that's dragging on is getting the design phase finished. Is
that correct?
MR. ELSTER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And yeah, I'm with you on the archeology
because it's a totally paved area already so that is a bit strange. But is
there anything specific that you're asking this Council to do in this year's
budget that you need to make this happen? Because I think it's a safety
issue that we don't have this done yet. And any of you Members, when
you leave here tonight, if you would just go down to this next street and
turn, turn right ... that is ... give me the name -MR. ELSTER: Piikea.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --Piikea and then you'll end up at the
intersection that we're talking about and then go up Lipoa to the highway.
Because the stop sign is right in the middle of the road, I mean in the
middle of the intersection, and it's very confusing. I've had a lot of calls
from people saying they feel it's very unsafe the way it's configured right
now and when is this going to happen. So is there anything specific you
need from this Council in, in the budget this year that you've been told is
needed by the Administration?
MR. ELSTER: Well, the, the Mayor has an item of $2.5 million in Fiscal 2009
and that's the support we need just to continue that. That's it.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Alright. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the
testifiers? Seeing none. Thank you very much.
MR. ELSTER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Patricia Duckworth, followed by Teya Penniman.
MS. DUCKWORTH: Aloha to all of you and thank you for this opportunity to
speak. My name is Patricia Duckworth. I'm an advanced practice nurse
with a post master specialization in gerontological nursing and I'm an
Assistant Professor at Maui Community College in the Nursing Program.
At yesterday evening's hearing I believe you all received information
regarding the Maui Long Term Care Partnership, Aging with Aloha, our
goals, our budget request, and a brief summary of the long term care
curriculum experience. I'm the faculty member responsible for the long
term care curriculum classes at the college. As I begin the second nurse
aide class funded by this program, I'm heartened and I'm excited by the
enthusiasm and positive work ethic displayed by the incoming students.
We remain in a pilot phase and I'm making revisions to ensure success of
the students and of the class being offered so that they will enter the
workforce with a sound foundation.
I come before you this evening to ask for your continued support and
increased funding for the partnership which includes expanding the long
term care workforce. At this time I already have approximately 20
inquiries regarding future nurse aide and elder care personal care attendant
classes. These inquiries are from adults who are unable to afford the cost
of this education but who desire to work with older adults, the fastest
growing segment of our population and often the most vulnerable. The
end of an era for Aloha Airlines may provide opportunities for those
whose jobs have been eliminated and who have had a desire to work with
older adults but who could not use their time and money for their ... this
required education. The number of jobs in elder care will continue to
grow but applicants must have adequate and appropriate education. I'm
respectfully requesting that each of you support this budget item and I
thank you for your time and your attention.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this evening? Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Ms. Duckworth. I'm very interested
in the training program. What is the length of the program?
MS. DUCKWORTH: Traditionally, these have been full semester programs,
(coughs) . .. pardon me. What we have done under the partnership is to
take that semester ... hang on a minute ... (coughs) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think we have the same bug.
MS. DUCKWORTH: Yes. We've taken that semester long for both of those
programs, the personal care home ... home health aide elder care attendant
and the nursing assistant, and we've compressed them into five to six
weeks. We haven't eliminated any of the content or the experience.
We've simply compressed it so that the turnover will be more rapid and
people will be able to get out into the workforce more quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So in about six weeks they can be certified?
MS. DUCKWORTH: Yes. The class that's coming up starts April the ih. Our
last class will be May the 15 th and we have scheduled the Red Cross
certification examination shortly thereafter. They can work before they're
certified by the Red Cross. They will have certificates of competence
given by the college if they receive a C in the course.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
MS. DUCKWORTH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions? Thank you
again for being here this late. Thank you. Teya, followed by Thomas
Croly.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you. Aloha, Chair Pontanilla, Council Members.
Thank you for being here, for coming, thank you for staying, and also for
listening to all the testimony. And thank you for all of your support for
work on invasive species in Maui County. This evening I want to explain
we're asking for level funding as is outlined in the Mayor's Budget. And
also want to highlight just a little bit, South Kihei, one of our striking
success stories related to co qui frogs. What was once a highly infested
nursery in South Kihei, we now consider to be a success story. It has been
over a year since any coqui frogs have been heard at that property and
adjacent properties and that is our standard for eradication. So your
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support, as well as the support of local landowners across the island
including in Kihei, are really helping us be successful at this. So thank
you for helping keep us from becoming like the Big Island, especially in
regards to coqui frogs. And we are seeing that success across the island at
13 of the 14 populations we consider to be either controlled or eradicated
moving towards eradication on each one of those with the ... except for the
last final population which you'll hear more about later in your budget
process. I also wanted to ... also in South Kihei our crews are working on
an aggressive vine called ivy gourd and also surveying for and controlling
banana bunchy top virus here in Kihei.
I wanted also just briefly to highlight some of the other. .. the other two
islands in Maui County. Chair Hokama I'd like to be sure you know that
our crews are ... regularly spend a week over on Lanai focusing on fountain
grass and also ivy gourd. In the last month they've been on Lanai for two
weeks working in concert with a program funded by Castle & Cooke to
help do some watershed restoration work. That's in association with the
wind ... possible wind farm development there. Helping to ... this is not
really exactly a MISC project, but we were asked to help provide some
expertise there for controlling strawberry guava with the idea of helping
regenerate some of the native plants there. And I think more ... maybe
more importantly evenly help ... even, is helping to train three new hires
that were brought on for that project who are all Lanai born and raised,
helping to train them in plant identification, control methods, and really
helping to I think build capacity and natural resource management on
Lanai.
And also Councilmember Mateo, I know you know the good work of the
Molokai Invasive Species Committee on Molokai, in particular Lori
Buchanan. We are looking at trying to add at least a half-time position on
the island and more if we can especially in light of recent developments on
the island there. We have over the last year on, on Maui been to over
5,000 properties. On Lanai about 800 which is pretty much -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. PENNIMAN: --most of.. . most of the residents there have seen us. Most of
our funding goes for bodies on the ground or in the air so you're providing
real, real jobs to get the work done while helping to protect Maui County
from invasive species. So thank you for your past support and we
appreciate your continued support in the future.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Teya, thank you so much for your dedicated
leadership on this really important issue for Maui County, well, Statewide.
But I'm just thrilled to hear that you've eradicated the coqui frog from the
nurseries down here in South Kihei. Are you telling us then that there is
no coqui infestation in South Maui at all now?
MS. PENNIMAN: There's still one other nursery that we're working on to
ensure that that one ... what happens ... we had 13, it became 14, you know,
and that's the problem that we will keep addressing as long as we continue
to get infested shipments from ... primarily from the Big Island of course.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean you're talking islandwide, you're
not talking about South Maui.
MS. PENNIMAN: Islandwide, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. So in South Maui the original
nursery that had the problem, are they ... are they now co qui free?
MS. PENNIMAN: That is coqui free.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right on! Good job! Thank you so much.
And then there's one more nursery here that now has a problem?
MS. PENNIMAN: Yes, that we are working in and expect to be successful there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very, very much.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, anymore questions for the
testifier? Thank you again, Teya. Tom Croly, followed by Bud Pikrone.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Council. I, I really want to take my hat off to all you guys.
I see how hard you've been working from one o'clock in the morning
Council meetings to taking your day off to hear the TVR bills a couple
weeks ago and coming out to do these meetings. No one can say that you
guys aren't dedicated and I, I really want to thank you for that. It's
probably crazy of me at this point in the day to start discussing numbers

- 52 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Aprill,2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall

after you had budget meetings all day long, but that's, that's the topic that
I have here.
Every year the, the Maui County Council sets our property tax rates. And
the current tax rate structure highly protects resident island homeowners
with very low tax rates and a $300,000 exemption and assesses the
major. .. the majority of our property tax burden to the visitor industry. If
anything, it treats low income renters inequitably and I want you to think
about that as you ... as you set the tax rates this year. I think we need to
take a closer look at how we have things structured right now.
With the protection of the property the, the circuit breaker and the
homeowner's exemption, there really is no way that any property owner
could be taxed out of their home. It's, it's a very good program and, and
it ... and it protects people, however, in reviewing some of the property tax
information that's online, I see that it is abused. There ... 1 found a case of
someone who bought a $3 million condo over in Wailea within the past
three years and now two years later is getting a circuit breaker adjustment.
So here's somebody who could afford to buy a $3 million condo but now
is saying, gee, I don't have enough money to pay my taxes and they're
reducing their taxes down to less than $3,000 a year while the neighboring
condo .. . (change tape, start 3A) . .. is paying $24,000 a year because he
rents his condo out part-time as, as vacation rental. So there's, you know,
we have to take a close look at, at whether that's being abused. There's
also homeowners on the beachfront that have addresses on the mainland
that their. .. that their property taxes are sent to and they're getting
homeowner's exemption. I don't know if it's right or not but, but it's
something you need to think about.
The, the homeowner exemption and the property tax, the way it's set up,
here in Kihei the, the median price of a home is $800,000 and a
homeowner pays $1,000 tax on that. However, somebody renting that
home to a local family pays $3,880 tax on that - more than 3Yz times the
amount as the homeowner. Now, that guy owns the property as, as an
investment obviously but he's renting it out to someone locally and that
local person is, is bearing the tax burden ultimately. So we need to think
about that, that, that right now we're giving the homeowner a really good
deal and maybe too good a deal and we're, we're hurting that, that guy
who's paying the improved residential rate.
The condominiums on the ... on the oceanfront down here, if you own a
$800,000 condominium and you use it part-time for your own use but rent
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it out part of the time, you're going to be paying--what is it that I got-$6,560 per year.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. CROLY: Six and a half times what the homeowner rate is. So while our tax
rate is set up to move most of the tax burden over to the visitor industry,
we may have gotten a little bit out of balance there and, and I want you
guys to think about that as, as you consider the tax rates for this year.
The County needs to make a greater effort to make sure that the tax
compliance that, that, that is in place is correct. When someone claims a
homeowner exemption, we need to make sure it is a homeowner. When
someone claims a circuit breaker, we need to ... we need to ... we need a
way to ensure that that circuit breaker is helping the people that we wanted
to help - that three million property that the person got because of
inheritance as opposed to the $3 million property that the guy owns that he
bought last week. So just something for you to think about and again I
really appreciate you guys coming out here to Kihei and hearing public
testimony and, and all your hard work. Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson. Tom, a request if you could leave your testimony -MR. CROLY: Sure, sure.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --to the secretary.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Tom.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it? Okay. Next testifier, Bud Pikrone, followed
by Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez.
MR. PIKRONE: Good evening, Chair, Members. My name is Bud Pikrone and
I'm here tonight as the Vice-Chair of the Fire and Safety Commission. As
you know, we selected a new Fire Chief recently to lead the department,
hopefully, into the future for this County. But for him to do that
successfully he needs to be able to equip, man, and train his department
and he needs to do that correctly. He needs to have the resources. We
understand the ... as a Commission, we understand what the County is
going through in having to make cuts. We know we approved about 37,
38 items and there's now about nine left. But those nine items, we still
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feel will help this new Chief and this department move into the future.
We really think it's important. I'll give you some examples.
The Battalion Chief today ... a Battalion Chief is responsible for 17
companies in 14 stations. Now the standard for a span of control is three
to seven with the ideal about five. So we're really kind of behind the
eight-ball here. It makes it a very unsafe and dangerous situation. The
new BC' s will mean we are still behind at eight to nine, but closer to the
optimum. This will make the department more efficient and also very
much more safe for the men and women firefighters on the line.
Another item on there is the medical director. As we know, the major
portion of the responsibilities it seems for the firefighters is emergency
calls. They're out there as a first responder and having this new director
will get them closer to their goal of, of achieving their EMT -B to be able
to be certified and actually act as true first responders and have that
medical responsibility. And that is something as you've heard one of the
testifiers earlier about lifeguards, well, maybe bringing the ambulance and
the first responder EMT service into the Fire Department is something the
new chief has talked about and I'm sure many of the other firefighters
have also mentioned to us in the past.
We also have on there physicals for the safety of the men and women.
This has been cut from about $70,000 to about $34,000 and this will take
care of about a quarter of the department. Now, they are ready to, to make
it so that the very stressful jobs will get these stress test, these EKGs,
talking maybe the rescue operators. They, they will need to have this.
You know, you got somebody who's jumping into the water in 20-foot
waves sometimes, it's pretty stressful. So I want -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. PIKRONE: --to make sure that they are healthy ... very healthy. So that is
something we feel is also very important as are the equipment, the
warehouse, and the other items on there. But these are examples that how
our department can improve and yet still remain today very safe for
everybody, not just the men and women on the line, but keep it safe for the
County ofMaui and the people. So please look at the items that have been
requested and consider them all as making this department, as I said, better
for the future and safer for the members of our community. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Bud. Can you leave your testimony with
us?
MR. PIKRONE: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No problem. Members, any questions for Mr. Pikrone
at this time? Seeing none. Thank you. Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez,
followed by Mike Moran.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ:
Good evening,
Council Members,
Mr. Chairman. When I first started testifying for the Council, I didn't
have to wear glasses. Now I do. .., (chuckles) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause you're thinner. ... (laughter) . ..
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: And I think it's 'cause I've gotten too thin.
At any rate, thank you very much for coming to Kihei and, and for
spending your time here with us. I truly, honestly believe that when
people talk about politicians, they're missing the boat. You guys are
citizen legislators, you come from the community, you work for the
community, and I think it's an honor to be able to even speak and testify
before you. I want to say from the bottom of my heart, thank you very
much, very, very, very much.
I am the President of Na Hale 0 Maui which is the affordable housing
land trust and I'm here today to ask you to continue your support of Na
Hale 0 Maui and to support the Mayor's appropriation which was placed
in the budget this year. We have worked very hard with hundreds of hours
- the volunteers. We have raised $212 [sic] in private donations to help
supplement what we received from the County. That was to hire an
Executive Director and our Housing Coordinator. We run the entire
organization with two staff and the rest is all volunteers. We have
initiated a home buyer seminar program. We have made proposals to both
for profit and nonprofit developers for the joint development of 321
affordable workforce homes. In addition, we were invited to make a
proposal for the development of 100 acres of land pledged by the Hana
Ranch for affordable housing and community needs and that has been well
received and we are waiting back for a final on that so we can develop
that.
We are not asking for any additional funding over what was received last
year. We recognize that the County needs to plan and needs to look at
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people moving towards understanding that for the core administrative
functions which have been supported by the County and by other funding
are important. We really utilize that core administrative funding to build
the capacity of the organization to seek additional funding and to work
with both private and nonprofit developers. And that has been very
critical - this partnership between the County and the affordable housing
land trust. It's critical and it's been a critical partnership in every
successful land trust - the more than 200 that exist on the mainland.
I would like to also point out that we ... we have been working with the
Administration in terms of the Administrative Rules to implement the
workforce housing bill. We've done that because we're good partners and
we do that on a volunteer basis and we are hopeful that Jo-Ann Ridao's
group will be able to produce a document for review fairly soon.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: And in closing, I would like to say thank
you very much for your activities. This Council did not walk away from
the affordable housing issue after the election was over. Charter 2 passed,
the workforce housing bill, the first-time homebuyer's fund. These
initiatives send the right message. We learn that it's very difficult to make
things happen but it must start and it must continue and you have done that
job, you continue to do that job, and we say mahalo. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Rodriguez
at this time? Seeing none. Thank you again -MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you. Have a nice evening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and nice seeing you again, Tom.
followed by Sheilah Jorgenson.

Mike Moran,

MR. MORAN: Good evening, Council Members. I'd like to add my voice to
what's been said so many times already this evening, but we do appreciate
your coming out here this evening and listening to all these valid causes. I
don't envy the challenge. You guys have it all. To hear all these things
that you wish you could support everything and we know you can't. You
have to allocate somehow and as I said I don't envy you that chore at all
but I certainly respect you for taking it on.
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I'd just like to speak about a few items that I think are important to our
community. One that's close to my heart and sometimes too close to my
body when I'm swimming in the ocean and that's our Pump, Don't Dump
issue. We're all familiar that the, the ... it's a State ... should be a State
responsibility, but the State has for years refused to take it on when boats
are dumping sewage in our nearshore waters. The revenue from these
boats goes exclusively to the State, but the State has refused to take the
Issue on.
The County did step up and start a program which has been successful at
Maalaea Harbor--has been successful for years--and that's strictly thanks
to the County government for getting the program done and for getting
it ... using creative financing by getting grants to keep the program going.
My understanding there is enough money now until the end of this year
through a couple of more grants that were achieved to extend the program
to the end of the year. But it's going to take years to go on.
The State has been promising. I know I've been promised by State
officials for approximately 5Yz years that they're going to put permanent
pump-outs in Maalaea and now this year I see they have put up a big,
probably expensive sign announcing in Maalaea that they are going to do
this. But when you ask for concrete information, when is it going to be
done, it's the same answer that I've gotten since I asked the question the
first time - it's three to five years away and it's on a sliding scale. It's
always three to five years away. Now they're saying maybe in 2011.
So I'm asking the County, even though it's not your kuleana, to please
keep supporting this. Otherwise, we're the ones that suffer. We know it
and that's, that's why the program did get started because we were
protecting our own ... our own environment, our own citizens, our visitors,
and the visitor industry here on Maui.
A couple of other items that I'd just like to mention briefly because I think
all of them have been touched on before is bike paths. It's a wonderful
concept. I'm a big, old fat guy. I ride a bicycle in Kihei every weekend. I
have a goal of not using my car on the weekend, trying to walk first, if not,
ride a bicycle. We don't have many places to ride safely. I ride South
Kihei Road and friends who are big sports gamblers chuckle at me when I
say I don't gamble. They say you put your life on the line every, every
weekend going out there.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
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MR. MORAN: So we do need some help to support for bike trails.
Couple of other items. I don't think it would ... it's gonna ... it cost us any
money but I understand the State did come up with money to pay the
County to put lifeguards at Makena but somehow there's some kind of a
glitch that it doesn't get done and we sure do need lifeguards down there.
Our reefs are in dire straights. I refer to myself as a haole come lately
here, but I've seen it in my years here that the reefs constantly deteriorate
and we need to protect them. There are many, many reasons why they're
deteriorating. It's a multi-faceted problem. One is, of course, that
someone mentioned earlier tonight, the wastewater that's being pumped
in. We have a tertiary program on, on Maui which is much better than
they have on Oahu so we could be using this water, but the objection
always, but it's gonna cost a lot of money to pump it where we need it.
Well, it's going to cost us a lot more money and other intrinsic value
things when our reefs are gone. So we really need that issue.
I have a whole list of things that I could go on and on, but you folks have
been patient tonight and I certainly appreciate the opportunity to speak.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Moran. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mike, I'd like to thank
you on behalf of everyone for the dedicated hard work you've done for
Pump, Don't Dump because ... it's because of your tenacity that there is
now a program in place. So thank you very much for that. You said by
the end of the year, there's enough money by the ... for the end of the year,
did you mean the end of the calendar year or the fiscal year?
MR. MORAN: Calendar year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So by the end of December you're going to
run out of money?
MR. MORAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That means we need to put more money in
this year's fiscal budget 'cause our budget runs from June through July.
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MR. MORAN: Correct. Now, it's tough to say whether. .. will they run out of
money because sometimes they can come up with ... it was originally going
to run out of money in April of this year, now April, we're in April, but
they got a grant from HT A and I think they got another grant because I
know they got enough money in and that's what I was told by Tri-Isle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Economic Development?

When you say ... you mean the Office of

MR. MORAN: Well, I get my information from Tri-Isle RC&D which runs the
program from Stuart. That's ... 'cause I know he pays ... the pump
company is actually doing the work so I go to him to get my information.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then I was just wondering, have
you got 100 percent cooperation from all the boats in Maalaea?
MR. MORAN: We ... there was only one boat that refused from Day 1 to
participate. It's a relatively small boat. Now, we didn't target every boat.
We targeted the largest charter boats there, but everyone but one has
signed on. And my understanding is finally after years that, that man is
the sole owner of that boat is selling it to someone else who said that once
they get it they will join the program -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excellent.
MR. MORAN: --so I think it's working.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And we will check up on what's holding up
the lifeguards at Makena.
MR. MORAN: Thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. MORAN: Aloha.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, the next four testifiers will be
testifying on Project EAST, Sheilah Jorgenson, Travis Roberts, Caitlin
Mauck, and Liz Zarro.
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MS. JORGENSON: Hi. My name is Sheilah Jorgenson and I'm actually
testifying for two organizations, both part of the Maui Economic
Development Board.
The first one is Focus Maui Nui. I've been a part of Focus Maui Nui for
three years now and I've gotten a lot out of it. I've made new friends,
learned more about the community, and now have a better understanding
about like how the economic portion of Maui works. And I think the
place ... my favorite place that we have went is Molokai. We went over
there and we learned a lot about the culture and we also helped rebuild a
native Hawaii fishpond. So we have put a lot of ourselves into this
program as well.
The other one is EAST which is the ... sorry ... Environmental and Space
Technology. We have gone all the way to Arkansas this year where we
have presented our projects that we have done to ... at an EAST conference
there. We enjoyed it very, very much. And though it is part of the entire
curriculum in our school, EAST helps us further promote the skills
necessary to survive in what we call the real world. And so basically, this
is what we call ... {inaudible} . .. at our school. There's many skills like
interpersonal communication skills, thinking and problem solving, and just
necessary stuff like that.
My project that I did was about wheelchair accessibility. This is
something I am very passionate about since my mom is in a wheelchair.
And basically, what we did is we made a website and on which we put
more information about like what places on Maui are wheelchair
accessible and what places aren't so that visitors who come to Maui will
know where they can go and where they can't. And what EAST did was it
allowed me to bring more recognition to the issue and bring more attention
to what we need solved.
MS. MAUCK: Hello. My name is Caitlin Mauck and I'm also a student from
Kihei Charter High School and I've been ... this is my first year involved in
the EAST Program. And as Sheilah mentioned, we were able to go to
Arkansas and participate in the EAST conference where we were able to
show the projects that we have been working on since the beginning of
this school year. And we were able to like collaborate with other schools
from Arkansas to Oklahoma and it was just from everywhere in the United
States. And they just showed us, you know, the type of projects that they
had been doing to better their community and we were able to get ideas
from them just so that when we come back, you know, we would be able
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to ... for next year we'd have projects that we can do at school. And our
school is just like ... it is very helpful in getting, you know, projects started
that we can help, you know, our community. And going there was just a
great opportunity. We were able to learn new software for computers, like
ArcGIS, which is a GPS software that allows us to put in the longitude and
latitude of like a road or our school even and we were able to utilize that
for our projects in going there. And I just want to say thank you for, you
know, allowing us to go over there and funding our, our ... it' s our club
actually and being able to go over there. So thank you very much.
MS. ZARRO: Hi, Everybody. My name is Liz Zarro and I'm a tenth grader at
Kihei Charter and I'm not going to repeat what any of them said. We did
good at Arkansas. It was a lot of fun. And being in this EAST Project it's
given me a lot of opportunities like with my project I have a partner, he's
not here right now, but we got to speak at the Energy Conference for the
Mayor and we presented our idea which was taking wind energy from cars
driving along the Piilani Highway. So as the cars drove by the wind being
pushed off the cars would turn into energy and be something we could use
and we created a model and it was really cool. And also they've helped us
learn new software, not just like ... 'cause when we went to Arkansas, there
were things called breakout sessions and it was sort of like one- to
two-hour tutorial on different softwares that you were interested in
learning. Here they sort of have stuff like that. It's like a one- to two-day
training on the software though and I've been to a dream weaver training
which is website design and I've been to a GIS training which is like
building maps that you would see on Google Earth and stuff like that.
And sorry, hold on, what else ... and oh, yeah, I also wanted to put a word
in for the bus because I take the bus a lot and that's how me and my
friends get around. And earlier today like we do current events in our
school and there was an article on the bus needing more money and if the
bus ... if we don't have a bus, then we have no way to get around 'cause
none of us have our license. So the bus is a really good idea and it needs
money. Thanks.
MR. ROBERTS: Okay. My name is Travis. I go to Kihei Charter. I'm also in
the EAST Program. I just want to say thank you for letting all of us to
have this opportunity to go to Arkansas and meet all the other people in
this country that are also participating in it and doing several projects like
how we're doing here to help out communities. And I want to ask for
continued support for all the students in EAST and future students that
will be hopefully going into this program. Okay, thanks.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Travis. Travis, don't run away. Members,
any questions for our testifier? Thank you very much. The next testifier
is Jennifer Kotter, followed by Peter Lago.
MS. RAPPENECKER: Was it Jennifer Rappenecker? Is that right?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Kotter. K 0 T T E R.
MS. RAPPENECKER: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not here.
MS. RAPPENECKER: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: You want to go?
MS. RAPPENECKER: I'd love to .... (laughter) . .. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Since you're up.
MS. RAPPENECKER: Number 55.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: .. , (inaudible) . ..
MS. RAPPENECKER: Thank you. I'm not Jennifer Kotter. I'm Jennifer
Rappenecker. I'm a member of the Board of Directors for the Maui
Humane Society and I want you to thank you for hearing us this evening.
I'm proud of the partnership that the Maui Humane Society has had with
the County in past years and I want to thank you for your support of the
Humane Society and I'm here this year requesting your continued support.
I'm here tonight representing members of our society that cannot be here
to speak for themselves, but if the 10,000 animals that received care at our
Humane Society last year could be here, they would surely fill this room.
And no doubt you're all probably picturing cats and dogs in your head, but
our wonderful folks at Humane Society do not turn any animal away so
we have pigs and goats and horses and bunnies and chickens and birds and
all sorts of unimaginable things - visitors at our Humane Society certainly
not just the cats and dogs you would think of. But I'm very grateful that
the Humane Society has an organization here and the people here that will
accept any animal and love them unconditionally just like our pets love us
unconditionally. It's just a wonderful organization.
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They're also very proactive and creative. They're not just a reactive
organization that takes in animals that are brought to them or that are
found or neglected or abused. They also have many partnerships with
children ... children's organizations, elderly, inmates, and so many
different people on Maui benefit from the services that the Humane
Society provides. And I just wanted to ask for your support in the
Mayor's proposal for the budget this year. And I also wanted to take a
second to thank our tireless Executive Director Jocelyn Bouchard, another
thankless job as all of you know being on the Council, and many of our
nonprofit employees here on Maui. They just, you know, they work from
the heart and we really appreciate it. So thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at
this time? Seeing none. Thank you very much. Peter Lago.
MR. LAGO: Just got to come back to about there .... (adjusting the mic).
Ladies and gentlemen of the Council, thank you for your time this evening
and your stamina. I know it's getting kind of late and everything. I would
like to touch on a couple of points of people that have spoken before me.
I'm a beneficiary of the Human Society. I have one of their dogs and I, I
really appreciate the love and warmth it brings. It's like having a little
son.
To speak real quick on the ... on the school's EAST Program. My best
friend Eric from Las Vegas graduated El Dorado High School. He went
out and learned ArcGIS and is now the county assessor's main guy that
mapped all of Las Vegas using this ArcGIS software and I cannot tell you
how important it is that these programs are available to these kids in the
school. And that trip ... we have a kid that lives right across the street from
me came back from that trip so pumped up because somebody finally took
him seriously, put him on a plane, and sent him over there to meet all
these technology people. These kids were on fire when they came back
from this and it shows in where they've gone since high school.
Now on to my own little ... I have a small request of you guys which will
require a small action. I am looking for the possibility of getting maybe a
dog park somewhere here in Kihei. We've had a lot of growth and
development here in Kihei. A lot of it has been condos and apartments
and things like that which don't necessarily offer a place to keep a dog and
as such adopting dogs from the Maui Humane Society and giving them
homes has challenged us with a little bit of a problem. We don't
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necessarily have a place to go and give them the exercise they need and let
them run and I certainly can't keep up with my dog for more than a block.
So aside from me having a heart attack trying to give my dog the energy
that he needs, I need a place for him to go out and run.
The Kihei Youth Center has been very lenient with us and very
understanding in the fact that they've been sharing their 7.4 acres of that
exquisitely designed park that you guys have out there and we've been
using it. We've ... we need kind of an area because we're so close to this
youth center, we need kind of an area where it can be safe. I represent a
small group of people, maybe about 20 people, that are going to form a
coalition that it's going to be like a kennel club and we're going to offer
like adopt a highway to adopt whatever park that we are given. We all
carry with us these little bags and we clean up the poo and we clean up
whatever trash we find in the park. Just this park is awfully big and it
would require I think maybe a substantial investment on the County's part
to create an area specifically for dogs.
What I am suggesting is maybe that we use this water retention basin
that's right here behind Safeway whereas it would only need four gates.
Each one of these gates valued at maybe $150. I run a small construction
company here on the island and built Kihei Ice and I've done some other
construction work. Gene-MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. LAGO: --Zarro, I'm sure, can vouch for me. We would offer to and be
happy to put these gates up and if we could just ... (change tape, start 3B)
. . . have this area ... this water retention basin behind Safeway just from
5:30 until 6:30 p.m. every day and yield it to anybody who wants to use
the park for a function like soccer, baseball, or anything like that. We
would be very happy to keep our dogs contained in an area and have a
place to go give them exercise. And like I said, I thank you again for your
time and your stamina in staying here this long.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at
this time? Thank you very much for your testimony and for being here
this late. The next testifier is Lehuanani Huddleston-Hafoka, followed by
Ann Nowicki.
MS. HUDDLESTON-HAFOKA: Thank you again. I didn't get the opportunity
to thank the County of Maui for supporting the Kihei Youth Center. For
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over 25 years since 1983, Kihei Youth Center has been in existence. What
I do ... did want to ask the County for is to support the $215,000 that the
youth center had asked for the next two fiscal years. That is an increase of
15 percent of what we have asked for over the past four years. So in four
years and possibly six years, there hasn't been an increase enough to offer
a competitive package to recruit and to retain our employees. It's often a
battle to try to compete with other for profit and other nonprofit
businesses. So we'd like to ask that you support our $215,000 request. In
addition, I would like to ask you to keep supporting MEO bus services.
Again, if it wasn't for MEO, most of our kids wouldn't be getting to the
youth center as they do every single day.
So ... and in regards to the gentleman that just spoke, he and I had a nice
conversation in the back and I'd like to say that I support some kind of a
dog park wherever it may be. Obviously, I'm advocating for youths, but
we also like to advocate for the dogs that obviously need to run and so
forth so if there's any consideration there. We also have agreed to
possibly go out together and look at an area that if there's even a thought
to supporting it that it might be beneficial for both parties involved.
And the Kihei Youth Center takes no control of the entire park. Our
kuleana is our facility and some of the exterior, but we make it ... we have
never made it known that we run Kenolio Park, but we do take
responsibility on ourselves to make sure that we pick up all the rubbish.
And you know, if there's any activities that are going on, we don't have a
problem with going and checking the cars out, telling the people there's no
swearing or anything outside of the buildings. So ... but I just wanted to
make it clear that we've never, you know, stated that we're in charge of
the park but we do take great pride in our facility which is ten years old.
And so we ask again for support and any other monies that are available to
make our ... a better improvement of our facility. So thank you very, very
much for your time. Good night.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Richardson.

Thank you.

Ann Nowicki.

Ann? Not here. Bob

MR. RICHARDSON: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for your time this
evening. My name is Bob Richardson and I'm an advocate for all things
that have to do with the Parks Department in South Kihei. And I'd like to
thank you for your support of the Park Ranger program over the last two
years. I spoke here two years ago about this Park Ranger program and
you have supported it and tried to grow it and it's made a tremendous
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difference at Kalama Park and other parks in the area and we appreciate
that very much. In a meeting just the other day with the Parks Director
and the head of the CIP Division of the Parks Department, it was indicated
that the focus with CIP and Parks this year is going to be on the regional
park. And we haven't heard anybody talk about the regional park tonight
probably because it's funded in the budget for the first phase and I think
that's important. But we need to get beyond that first phase and actually
have a regional park. We need the fields, we need the gymnasium for our
students, but we also need other things for South Kihei. We need to
continue ... we need to complete the playground facility we have at Kalama
Park. We need to continue to support the staff of the South ... the South
Parks Department staff. They're doing a tremendous job and we're so
appreciative of the help that Mary and her team bring to this ... to this
issue. But without, without your support those programs need additional
funding and so we would very much appreciate that. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Richardson. Members, any questions
for the testifier tonight? Thank you for your testimony. Perna Gilman,
followed by Benjamin Johnson.
MS. GILMAN: Good evening, Council Members, Chairman. Thank you so
much for coming to Kihei. I've given my testimony - a copy for each of
you. You may think it a bit strange that a 37 -year resident of Kihei has
come to talk to you about Lahaina but I have been an advocate with
Women Helping Women for the past nine years working with women and
their children in crisis. And I spent about five years working on the
coordinated community response project for the island of Maui and it
became very clear to me in my community, organizing work as well as my
case management work, that the women and children and families dealing
with domestic violence in West Maui were being left out of the picture
year after year after year. And so I kind of made it my campaign with my
agency to make sure that we started to move in that direction. And so I'm
here to talk to you tonight about that. I want to thank you first of all so
much for your support in the past for the critical work that Women
Helping Women does providing services to victims of domestic violence
and which enhances their safety and their wellbeing and to end domestic
violence on Maui County.
The agency request this year is $190,000. That's for all of the services
that we provide - shelter and transition programs, and restraining order
support, and women's groups, and we need to continue this work. Part of
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this year's request for the 2009 Budget would bring the staffing at the new
West Maui office to enable us to deliver full-time service. Currently, the
funding from the State Legislature only allows us to be open three days a
week and only six hours on those days.
In the year and a half of operation at 20 hours a week, the West Maui
office of Women Helping Women has seen a big increase in the number of
calls coming from victims who need help. And this occurs a lot on the
days that we're closed and the hours that we're closed. Many of those
people do not have the ability to come to Central Maui where our main
office is to get help or to go to any of the other agencies that, that would
serve their needs. They don't have the ability because they may lack
transportation or childcare. There may be safety issues involved. And
they even lack the money for the bus because there are times when that
woman who needs to get over there for services doesn't have the $4 that it
takes to go over and come back.
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. GILMAN: The current allocation for the line item for Women Helping
Women has been reduced to $165,000 and I'm here to ask you to please
restore the $25,000 that would allow us to hire another part-time staff
person and bring the provision of services to the West Maui office to meet
the demonstrated needs of that community. Currently, I am the only
advocate there, commuting each day, 45 minutes in each direction,
because I really believe that the folks on that side need help. So I want to
thank you very, very much for your attention at this late hour of the
evening. I know we're all fading. So thank you for listening to me and
thank you for your serious consideration in granting the full requested
allocation to Women Helping Women of $190,000. This will help us
respond to the needs of the victims in West Maui. Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thank you again for testifying this evening.
MS. GILMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Benjamin Johnson. Lynne Gilroy.
MS. GILROY: Hello, Council Members and Chairman. My name is Lynne
Gilroy and I'm here tonight because I'm an artist and I've been honored to
have ... be part of a show ... a three-person show that will be at the Maui
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Arts and Cultural Center beginning in May. It will be through the middle
of May to the middle of June. And so the people at the gallery said if I
was willing, I should come here and, and put in some good word for them.
And I feel both personally as an artist, but also as a citizen of the
community the value of the Arts and Cultural Center, personally it's been
a, a ... just a gift to be able to prepare for three years for a show at the
MACC. And I realize, you know, as an artist I'm sort of the solitary
person out there painting, but I also realize that the value of art in the
community and how even being an artist in a way allows us all to be
artists. So there's that personal part which I realize, if it wasn't for the
Arts and Cultural Center, I don't know if I would maybe even be able to
carryon in Maui in the way that I can and the way I can explore this
artwork. But as a private citizen I feel even more strongly about the Arts
and Cultural Center. I think what ... we've been really fortunate to, to
build it in the first place and then find that we have a community and staff,
all the people that go together to make this an outstanding Arts and
Cultural Center that really represents the spirit of Maui. And what I
wanted to say is it's a thriving vital part of our community. It draws
people here. It stimulates us. It entertains us. It brings in creative and,
and people to our community that really can contribute to this community
and it gives back to the community, both monetarily and culturally. So
what I want to say is we have something here that's really valuable. It
really works and let's keep contributing to it to help it continue to do its
job, especially as we grow as a community. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier
this evening? Seeing none. Thank you again for being here.
MS. GILROY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Larry Crilley. Gene Zarro.
MR. ZARRO: Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla and Council Members. Well,
who would have thought nine o'clock on a Budget meeting would be the
light work for the year. So thank you for staying out this late. We really
appreciate it. So, you know, what's important to you as elected officials I
believe is trying to do what your constituents elected you to do, kind of
help us take care of the needs of the community. And that's important to
probably a lot of your constituents is their children, whether they're
aunties or uncles or whether they're sons or daughters, whatever they are,
the children are, in my own personal opinion, my biggest concern, the
things I want to do the most for. So with that this should be no surprise, I
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would like to mention a few organizations that I think are very important
at what they do.
First, the underpinnings of supporting the youth will be the organizations
that provide substantial support like MEO. MEO, their bus service, we
will ... the Charter School will actually be using MEO. They have agreed
to help us bring our children to the after school programs at the Kihei
Youth Center. So it's an amazing partnership again. So the Kihei Youth
Center is there. We need to keep supporting the youth centers and the
Boys Clubs and Girls Clubs because they do so much for the youth and
MEO is kind of the thread that weaves that together for us.
Then you take an organization like Maui Economic Development Board,
MEDB. You heard some of our children and how jazzed they were about
having had the opportunity to not only to learn about technology but to go
somewhere where other kids are learning. And you know, you may have
only sent five kids from Kihei Charter, but you also sent maybe four or
five kids from five other high schools over to this conference and when
they come back they infect the whole student body with enthusiasm.
These kids that went sort of won a little competition within our own
school so there's a multiplier effect to that.
One of the other important partnerships that I think we need to support, the
Maui Academy of Performing Arts and Maui OnStage. The Kihei Charter
School has done a lot of work in trying to get ... trying to educate children
on this island. Maui Academy of Performing Arts has offered us their
facility and we'll be opening a middle school in Wailuku on Main Street
with partners like Maui Academy of Performing Arts and Maui OnStage.
They're providing the facility. You'll have an arts integrated middle
school right on Main Street. What could be more important to help the
Main Street revitalization project than to bring kids and families and
consumers into that neighborhood during the time when Wailuku's open?
Nine to five, you know, they'll be there with everyone else trying to create
a little more activity. But the important thing is the partnership between
the Maui Academy of Performing Arts and Maui OnStage with the Kihei
Charter School to enable this to happen. It's these partnerships between
the nonprofits and between the organizations that are supporting each
other that are important for you to support for us because they're
very ... the children are very important to us and -MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.

- 70-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
Aprill,2008
Kihei Community and Aquatic Center Main Hall

MR. ZARRO: --we're your constituents and hopefully you will do what is right
for those kids. So continue doing what you're doing. You cannot please
everybody but we're very pleased at what you're doing. So thank you
very much and continue to support our youth groups. Thank you. Aloha.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Gene. Members, any questions for
Mr. Zarro at this time? Seeing none. Thank you very much. The last
person to sign up to provide public testimony is Rosemary Robbins. Is
there anyone out there that want to provide testimony at this time? If you
could come up forward to sign up and we'll take you.
MS. ROBBINS: Good evening, everybody.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mary Robbins ... oh, Rosemary.
MS. ROBBINS: Rosemary. We probably all seen that bumper sticker, you
know, London, Paris, Rome, Paia. The Maui Long Term Care Partnership
is kind of the Paia of all of that. That began four years ago as a private
sector funded outfit and we were competing, just the island of Maui back
then, with, oh, these major medical centers around the country. I kind of
couldn't believe that we got that and thought, oh, grace of God, okay, how
do we run with this? And I'd just like to give you a little understanding on
what has happened. We have had a wonderful young teacher at
Lahainaluna who got her students enthused about possibly at least looking
into working with people who are not so young as what most people like
to work with when they're in high school and she just did a wonderful job
on that. And in the meantime, from Lahainaluna, we also have
Kamehameha and King Kekaulike and Maui High now with youth groups
that are going out and actually shadowing people who are working with
our aging population and becoming enthused and want to go in to this
curriculum that MCC is offering that Patricia Duckworth spoke about
earlier tonight.
And so in, in four years of that, the money for that grant has run out, the
time for that grant has run out, and the enthusiasm is climbing sky high.
And I'm so pleased to say that Maui Community College is going to now
be taking over the financial responsibility for that. I've been working with
Tony Krieg for the past four years and I will be working with Clyde
Sakamoto. I've been on the referral and services and the steering
committee for that grant and will now be on the community development
committee for. .. meeting tomorrow. So it's an ongoing thing that has just
done wonderful, wonderful stuff.
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Those of you who know Micky from Up country - you know who I'm
talking about? Sort of the PR guy that hangs around outside in front of
Foodland? Yeah. Okay. Well, the award winning videography group
from King Kekaulike went up to visit him when he was hospitalized at
Kula San and sort of a story quest thing. They're doing audio/video
presentations of that and I just watched that man go from such a
discouraged patient to right back up to building his stuff out on the road
and running the whole ... the Upcountry. You know, and it's just so
exciting to see what has been able to happen as those kids got the older
people at the hospital enthused about looking back on their life and how
much we owe them. So good stuff happening there.
Ann Trigstad [sic], Registered Nurse, has gotten our nursing homes up to
the 1997 ... Fire Codes. So we'll continue on for that looking to legislation
monitoring on the State level to be able to have money invested in those
kinds of things because the long term rate of return is incredible by
contrast to the money that's put out to doing some of these things. The
Maui Long Term Care Partnership has also produced an online and a
hardcopy directory of services for people who are in need of finding out
what the long term care opportunities are on Maui, both for the people
who might need that as they age and for their caretakers. So good stuff
happening there and I'm just. ..
MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. ROBBINS: Thank you. I'm just encouraging you to continue financing that
because it's going nowhere but great. And everybody under this room and
under this beautiful ... {inaudible} . .. you're going to drive home under
tonight is aging or will die in the process. So it, it's affecting everybody.
So please make sure that that continues to happen. It's just wonderful.
Thanks so much for everything.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Rosemary. Members, any questions for
Rosemary at this time? Seeing none. Thank you very much. Anyone out
there that want to provide public testimony at this time? Seeing none
coming forward .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, before I close I just want to thank the people
of South Maui, not only South Maui, but I see some people from Kula,
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Pukalani, and other parts of Maui, thank you for being here tonight
providing public testimony in regards to the Mayor's 2009 Fiscal Year
Budget. Like I said earlier, we're going from different areas here in Maui
visiting the community, taking up public testimony. The latter part of
April we will be doing our deliberations based on your testimony and
come out with the best budget we can ever come out with here in Maui
County for the year 2009. Again, on behalf of the Committee Members
here, thank you for being here. This meeting is adjourned. . . .(gavel) . ..
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